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REAEN-_ZF_NF=A—_t+/\HRHEFHEZEENE, FHZESTFATHELE, KFHL, BENEEEERAR
RAFTRABFH EEREE, YARBEE 2K, EFERR, ZEENEREEZBSSHRIRIELBE LG,
MEZEENARRYEERAMANTESRSAEEEBHEREHFMTE, BREWMA S, RRSEN MR, Witk
WITEFOFNGE, IEFSRLES. FNZE SR ERARAXTHMLEERNEMBANEBGRTSFEE,
PAR S TERIBAMOF N BE AT B, MR B @D EA R AR R E BB A EARERESRE, FMEES

BERIBERT-REH,

T =FN\ATH, FHEREEEBHT —REE, I TREAQRABERESSCRENETERENRBER, IR
FEBTAEFTERRBUATRERENEBLHER,

EEENHMF BT IR BRERM TS,
REZES

REZESHRRKNEBEE - R2RTEFREOAELRMEBBIFNTESTTREEL, AFHELRHIMMELE( R -
ME=A-+N\BEEE ), EREELEN_Z-_MF=A-+/\HEEREZEEKE, REZEGIRARELLE,
ENEEETEZTREFRE LERYEE, YAREBEZRE, ARFRCAREZESRHEARERMBITERE, 74
ZESHESKBEVEXESRUBRITHRE, ERARLARAE, REZESNACBKYEEERIETENRBE. AR
KR, WHERRBREARARMARKEMESESTSFLNTMNEREDRIER, WELEFERBZITEEE,
VERBRBEERIETIESENAL, UYERLREZAZRIMUNEZTSRHER, FEBLIFRTEFTNBEILE, 3
EXZIRENZEULES( LERIEREH BTN ESSRIEE, YERZREEZTENEZTLBENBR
MEBEBRNBRBER, NBREREN, REZEGCEHRRREZESNARRERE, BEFAEBRNEL, &
F2EREQCEARBEU L BB AL EAFERREE, REEZEEEFRIARIT REHE,

—E=HFt-ANR, BRT XRRREEER, R T AR RNFHBR AR BFHMKEOBF HEEE,

REARRNAL, EEZEREFNEREFTTHRRERNALEBEEARR TABRRBFAGR/IL, ERFENTE
BERMEERERAE LEEEE, MENEREIRREESEMENRENESRECIEARA MNERRBFRERILL,
ERETAERNEERRAS LEESEE, SEFRIE=FGHFERI R, ERERANREEREE, MR
NEBRERERES,
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BE_Z_=F1T_A=1—"RALFE, AN ARHENZERY M EZHERNREENHEN AR RZEE L KE
SHEMEREFTRE BN B R75 BRI M1 BT, EABER MRS T B eREREHAMEREEHEARE,

EREES

BEZZEET, RO BAXBABLTRAMBKNEEEXER, AAREENETIEBNMBKEEREER, BREZE
SWEKBNEZREAZEAMA —FARTARFREINEZBEINATEARR A, IEKES EHEENRENTERE
EHPBERER, AMBRARBNEAEREMUHEE, EFTSMEERZ BN ERFELB L HE, WHEXERTEE
MEFERTERZES, RETZTRINER,

BERZERERNEBE —RIFMTESRAM (R -_E_MF=A -+ \BEZE ) MMBBILIFNTESRERE
ENEMMEE(R T _NF=A-+\BEEE ), EEREXEIN_FT_MF=A_+/\BBHEEZZEEKE, Xk
RER-_Z_WNF=ZA-t/\AREHFHLZEENERTBRBRZEZEENE, BERZ BT ARERLE, B%EE
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BT EARERERE, ERZEeEFRIABITMAEH,
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E-T_ZFH AT HUEFENKEZMBREMAPRELS . RAAKEERA I TELRMEARERRE
BRAREGRFNBERE, BEREZEeNEEREEETHR, NERAAR ST MU KERBETHZER. BETEE
K5 EIIRERAE 2 RHIE,
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RIE EMRAIZE13.39(4) 1%, FREMIREAE EMERRIAEBENIEEFH#ET,
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EBREERABEZERR
EREERIE
EaRERE L, ARARKEEEBMIAN(ATEETR )T, BREFTEABRE,

E2EEH L, ARREEERMARARKERBETMHENRAR, Fit, ARARNRERERBRLERN. FEEL
R, WHREFRE, BB RBEIEXTEARELRKERELAR, ARAFERRRAREZERREZR, BEARER
RETe, AERREEES, TER Bml,ﬁﬁirﬂ @, Rﬁﬁi&#%%%%IM,HAATAWERM%
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BRI R B IR

ARBREBEFRBETDBRRCOSO( RERVBHREZBENELAMEEZR S WEAREERERZRKNELSMAE
BAREREENED, REAARERBAMESER, BorRBRBEN=FRBRACTRZREER, FKERER
BWREIEGIFFERR, BRSTEANEERSNAREMERE, RERERAQRKLEDNAENIE. HMBREN A5
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o FERRAMPIEMREZERBETE,

o BYEBEARRREETIF, SHEERLENENELAN, BEREARFEENENR
B, YWHETE B AR ELTEE,

o EBEBEEEIMM

o RUEMABRMNE, BEFNEEER, EPORERR. X=RBREETE, YRR
IR HEREE A G R E T DT MR |

B=ER R EBEHRAR

o HRXEBHFMIMERERFRNARERE TERREBEETE
REERFIRLAREE,
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FEATE

o FRFEZHRMREIE, EXRRERFEER, ACEARBRESEETR, ALK
BERAMINEEARBREH IR, WHTROEHEETRE,

o HRFR LERMEERET ORI, BRMAMIMIISEBETRY, WERERRERE
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FFRBSETABEARFARREERABEREZAGNERREETRE, WELRBERRK,

RIBABAIPINTIERR, ARAREFERA, ARTANEREEMAMERRZGTSY . T ASERARLERE, B
BPEOEAR, ARNEREEMANEREREBEEEE. MIETDERFEARTERNEBRZTENNAR, ER1H
EARSHRHRSRIBRIEH A IE M IFBH RRE,

RRBFESFMMEEOIES . RENEEARER, ARECERE TREF, BREEEEEABETARRESRXHA
BSERIE. SHAERESEREEFREEMLESFZ RG], BERRHRIEB ARRRE B 0 RIZBAMNEEERE
B, U s RSB AR IR AREBREERR,

— AR

EFRERRACFRISEMBHARNTHERE, CELUHHRRERENQDFHRRAABNEHMRNR, WHFEAIEEER
FERER R, AREBEE_F__F+ A=+ HLEFENUHERERE, EFCHETEREABENSITHK
R EEEE. AFRGEMHE NG, TRSECEEERRIBRK,

AN B R R E RPN AFERET E271 E278 AN B AZHEI R E N,
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EEEHE

ERGBRLAAT T =54
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ETEXRE

BEN_ZT_=F—A-RE_FT_=F+ A=+ BEELNPBHHRER([ PR

BT =K, FUFEEE - FFASKTEI2ETNMARERTEE, REFINMEEBRARAR, B E
SRMEF R, EREF. BEEEREIEMERE L5 AFTE] FEIC+Power Discrete | TEE I, /EFRMEZ T

e TEREZERY ., EUYERTIZFRAINELKHA

£ EI
R

i—iﬁz

ARz

ZHE AT 55287E288H ),

B ER-T - —FEHERAAR22.8611EEIL, RE—FE NE7.7%, Bi&EInternational Business Strategies, Inc.

(IBS)EMER, REKISHETSHEZRTE,

EREEETIE T =FFBN10%, mERINTSESKE, BE

i, EREMERMEROAEBEREL, ARDRETENEREERE, HESSRT+12ETEMMAR, KERY
MR IMTE R EREEFT, AREAE. T, MERFALIREETER, EUE[ FFEIC+Power Discrete [fFE TE
BRENZECET, EmmERBEREXIMENEZRN ., ArRE_T _MFEESRRMTIHEIEEBE,

RIREEIDE WA

—EC=F o =fF B ZT--F [BILL &L B &L

ES % FET % FFET %

FiEpE S E 2,181,591 95.4% 2,376,659 96.0% (195,068) (8.2%)
E 104,522 4.6% 98,829 4.0% 5,693 5.8%
=X 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

o T4, NABLABMEERARE FEERZENHEWA,
REFENEsEZRA

—EC=F = T ZT--F [BIEL &L [ &L

ESH % FE= % FFET %

RN RINER S RET AT 2,109,482 92.3% 2,267,446 91.6% (157,964) (7.0%)
BEBRFRIER (IDMs) 176,631 7.7% 208,042 8.4% (31,411) (15.1%)
=X 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

o  REREERMATNEMESE R ARFEPELMNEEWARLL92.3%,
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BEESETEXERA

—E-= —E-= oo ZEC-F Eilsd:-dld Cilsd- 2]

FEx % FET % FE7T %

H 1,774,178 77.6% 1,811,269 73.2% (37,091) (2.0%)
EERE 204,882 9.0% 297,683 12.0% (92,801) (31.2%)
TN E At [ i 149,087 6.5% 210,610 8.5% (61,523) (29.2%)
B [ 134,760 5.9% 114,728 4.6% 20,032 17.5%
HAE 23,206 1.0% 41,198 1.7% (17,992) (43.7%)
B 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

“ZO—FENRIDARES T BUBUER, EWELIER17 5%,

BREMBERE D EZWA

SECEF SEo=H ZERoof ZE-CF Cilsd=d1s Gilsd=d1s

FER % FET % FET %
BARIES KR IEFFEES(eNVM) 703,148 30.8% 767,568 31.0% (64,420) (8.4%)
B IS KT (SNVM) 116,715 5.1% 208,171 8.4% (91,456) (43.9%)

s 902,346 39.4% 774,638 31.3% 127,708 16.5%
R B EAET 4R 202,483 8.9% 274,384 11.1% (71,901) (26.2%)
R#E(Analog) B1 8 R E 12 (PM) 358,333 15.7% 448,648 18.1% (90,315) (20.1%)

HAftb 3,088 0.1% 2,079 0.1% 1,009 48.5%
At 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

“ECZF, DERFMRBEMBIER, TEHRMERITE. TERBNBRYIFR,
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RISHHEPEZERA
—E-= —E-= oo ZEC-F Eilsd:-dld Cilsd- 2]
FEx % FET % FE7T %
554K ;654K 291,683 12.8% 355,161 14.3% (63,478) (17.9%)
QOANK K 95K 386,191 16.9% 505,233 20.4% (119,042) (23.6%)
0. 11K R 013K 405,911 17.8% 426,387 17.2% (20,476) (4.8%)
0. 150K R 0. 187K 147,338 6.4% 206,733 8.4% (59,395) (28.7%)
0.25%K 24,217 1.1% 15,027 0.6% 9,190 61.2%
>0.35%0K 1,303,773 45.0% 966,947 39.1% 63,826 6.6%
At 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)
o T =F>035MUKKIIA BRI RIS EBMIRFIE R,
RKmT IS B D EZEWA
S“ECE=F OCERC=F O ZRC-fF ZR--F 0 RAR®E RRZt
FER % FET % FET %
HEET 1,294,251 56.6% 1,599,116 64.6% (304,865) (19.1%)
TEMAEE 673,395 29.5% 550,342 22.2% 123,053 22.4%
BiE 256,856 11.2% 248,033 10.0% 8,823 3.6%
FE 61,611 2.7% 77,997 3.2% (16,386) (21.0%)
&t 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

TR =HFTEMAREFMSNARSELEIER,
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ERERERNAR

REM THRRESA) —g=-= —T-=F [FLL &1t
T — 3R 65 65 -
AT — R 60 60 -
T =R 53 53 -
8T RE AERE AR 178 178 -
FEIT R 1208 REERE ) 95 65 30
EsfAXR(FrasiTmE ) 94.3% 107.4% (13.1%)

o T -FEHNAE8ETHEERNBEII3%,

FERE
ikl —%== —E-—f At 21k
NESE( a8~ &E) 4,103 4,087 0.4%

o T —HFREMTESRERL EF0.4%,

e

BB R E BTN, AEFFEL, TEBRERRARESKEFHE. BUAFESREFHESE. I
K22+ (Discrete). #E#i(Analog)FIEREE. NMi#E#H (Logic)lET#A5E = B, BEARFPIRERETSENEET
BRFARG, —T-=F, EMHEREERA12ETEERMITTARER, KEl FEIC+Power Discrete |EmAE
F12RTTEFLANBERMESENLE,

SR FHERENEIIT AR ARENFERE T - —FTTLEWINR Y —, EFRARSIMGEHERTEORES
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TEMEN N FER S 103 78 32.1%
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HEmE A (33,666) (111,360) (69.8%)
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DEEEE R AR 9,230 12,171 (24.2%)
BADEF 173,579 496,070 (65.0%)
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FTERITIER 193,035 426,756 (54.8%)
JE A<} G 5 SRR 13,876 6,096 127.6%
TS #85 B) 35,017 37,714 (7.2%)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B E RS

Ernst & Young LXK BT RN ETEFT TelE:%. +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place ~ HHHIEAHRESEI79%  FaxEH: +852 2868 4432
979 King's Road N —Re271& ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 279 to 391, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Impairment of long-term assets

As at 31 December 2023, the
carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible
assets was US$3,648 million,
representing a significant
proportion of the Group’s total
assets. Management made a
judgement that certain cash-
generating unit had indicators
of impairment at balance
sheet date and performed
an impairment test using
discounted cash flow method
to estimate its recoverable
amount. This matter was
significant to our audit because
the carrying amount of long-
lived assets was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the impairment
test process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’'s disclosures
about the impairment of long-
lived assets are included in
notes 3 and 13 to the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating
management’s identification of
the CGUs and judgement of
impairment indicators thereon,
involving our internal specialists
to assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the impairment
test and key assumptions such
as discount rate, evaluating
the other key assumptions, in
particular, the projection period
length, revenue growth rate,
gross profit margin and net profit
margin, and reviewing relevant
disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recognised an
investment property amounting
to US$167 million as at 31
December 2023. The Group
measures its investment
property at fair value at the
end of each reporting period
and engages external experts
to assess its fair value.
During the year, this matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount
of the investment property was
material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
valuation process was complex
and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures
about the valuation of the
investment property are
included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuers engaged by
the Group, comparing property-
related data used for the
valuation with the underlying
documentation and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
estimated rental value, term
yield, reversionary yield and
long-term vacancy rate, and
reviewing relevant disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

B R BEN R E

BB ET RS M B RRARE
MEE(&)

s MBEBRHANUSECEREWROEH
EHREN, YRBCERNESR
&, RESTANREY BESERE
REENBREARBENEHFRBERS
BEATHERE, MERMBRERRE
BEATHERSR, BMAFREXBER
STRRBEIBARAMBHRRANERK
%, MRBEEEESR, AERTRM
MER. RfIN&EREERB XA
HEBMESHETRRE, A, K
KEMHBERAAEEN EXBETHA
BRBRZENEE

o HERAMBERER(BREEKE NEES
H. RBNMAR, AREEHBEHRERE
BRERRBBERSREE,

e ¥ EEEANSERIEXBKIDONG
ENESTREENETRE, NEHR
RAMBREABRRER, BRMARRRE
B EEMHRT ESENEIE,
BPIARBAINEFERAERBEL,

BAIF( BR824 )BT TIER A SIS E M
BARBEARER( BRAMESETBESD
HIMMEAIAREHINERRK ) EEZEZ B
SHEITAR,

BATREZZESRER, ERRMD
BT ARBMRBEER, YRAAERE
ERRAETERMBIMENBENEGLS
BHIA K B EVE T ERERH) 1T 2 S8 A 9 R
B ER ), BERZBSRITER,



278  HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZFE4TEEEHR AT o 2023 ANNUAL REPORT FE R4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN R E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
w e SR EIBFE R

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-CF
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
Bz FErx FET
Revenue SHEIA 5 2,286,113 2,475,488
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,799,017) (1,631,832)
Gross profit EH| 487,096 843,656
Other income and gains H b A R es 5 144,370 70,986
Fair value gain on an investment property & & ¥R A FERZ 103 78
Selling and distribution expenses HE kD IHE R (10,189) (12,464)
Administrative expenses EEER (322,868) (266,666)
Other expenses Hib & 5 (33,666) (111,360)
Finance costs WIEEMR 7 (100,497) (40,331)
Share of profits of associates paK i A /NEI Vel 9,230 12,171
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BADEF 6 173,579 496,070
Income tax expense FriSEif = 10 (47,154) (89,499)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 126,425 406,571
Attributable to: THIATIEG.
Owners of the parent ISYNEIL PN 280,034 449,912
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AE R (153,609) (43,341)
126,425 406,571
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FELEREBR.
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic HAR
— For profit for the year ~F A US$0.189 US$0.345
0.189% T 0.345%7T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year —4F 3 F) US$0.188 US$0.342

0.188% T 0.342% 7T
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEHEWNER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F-A=+-BHILEE

2023 2022
—EB-=H B —
US$’000 US$'000
FER F=T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 126,425 406,571
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htp2mEks (HE)
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit R EZEAMAIGEEFH D IEE
or loss in subsequent periods: bi=Endsp Rk YT} opi=
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations &GN EFSEE + HIINE
A58 (56,005) (309,458)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to ~ REEHMAIEEFIEE
profit or loss in subsequent periods BammE M2 AEEFE (56,005) (309,458)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be REBHETSERSES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BaEmEMEERE
(&8 ).
Equity investments designated at fair value through other  ¥§E R A EFAEM 2 E
comprehensive income: W BRI & .
Changes in fair value NEHEES) 95,310 (53,707)
Income tax effect Frigtise e (14,628) 8,348
80,682 (45,359)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates AEEE A TR EMEE R
&= 1,352 -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be REBHETISERSES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods BEmEMEERE
(E518 )58 82,034 (45,359)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FRHEMEEWRE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B518 ), HRrFiE 26,029 (354,817)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FREENREE 152,454 51,754
Attributable to: TEIA TR
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEFSPN 331,980 153,027
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (179,526) (101,273)
152,454 51,754
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R AR

31 December 2023

F-=4+=A=+-A

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
+=ZA=+-8 +=B=+-—H
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Bz ES FZET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M. WE MR 13 3,519,292 3,367,716
Investment property WEYZHE 14 166,643 169,363
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 78,545 78,425
Intangible assets mLEE 16 49,827 32,986
Investments in associates RIS N RIEIRE 17 139,099 130,721
Equity investments designated at fair value EERAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income IR E 18 270,506 178,632
Long-term prepayments to third parties JER S = A 2 REFTEN FRIE 149,953 7,742
Deferred tax assets EIETIEEE 28 - 14,066
Total non-current assets B EELRE 4,373,865 3,979,651
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development FEEEGEE I ES 19 178,828 134,723
Inventories & 20 449,749 578,060
Trade and notes receivables B 5 UG K RN R K 21 278,669 291,856
Prepayments, other receivables and other FEfFFUIE. HihEUGIE KX
assets Hih&E 22 33,821 48,273
Due from related parties JE W B 75 R IE 35(c) 11,219 13,006
Pledged deposits [REEiVER 23 32,088 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
Total current assets MENVEEEERR 6,569,555 3,075,725
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S IR 24 235,410 236,999
Other payables and accruals HAbE I RIBE R EHE R 25 430,478 593,971
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETERITER 26 193,035 426,756
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 3,076 4,704
Government grants AT Eh 29 35,017 37,714
Due to related parties FE - B 75 SR IE 35(¢c) 13,876 6,096
Income tax payable FERTFR1S TR 61,495 76,176
Total current liabilities D IN=REF 972,387 1,382,416
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 5,597,168 1,693,309
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAE
LIABILITIES 9,971,033 5,672,960

continued %&/- -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR ER TR

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F —E - —F
+=ZH=+—-H +ZA=+—H
Notes US$’000 US$'000
izt FEx FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITIER 26 1,906,526 1,481,580
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 19,129 14,644
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 28 30,834 41,268
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERRE 1,956,489 1,537,492
Net assets BEEFRHE 8,014,544 4,135,468
EQUITY e
Share capital %N 30 4,933,559 1,994,462
Reserves (=] 32 1,367,436 1,036,008
Total equity attributable to owners of the  EIARIHEA AJEIGRES 4858
parent 6,300,995 3,030,470
Non-controlling interests Eealiig T 40 1,713,549 1,104,998
Total equity S 8,014,544 4,135,468
Suxin Zhang Jun Ye
RED g4
Director Director

EF B=%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
g ez SR PR SSEAEI R

Attributable to owners of the parent

BITRAARG
Fair value
reserve of
Other financial
capital Share of assets at
feserve other fair value (Accumulated
Share and  comprehensive  through other Stafulory  Exchange ~ losses)/ Non-
Share  Merger  option contributed  incomeof comprehensive Revaluation resenve fluctuaion  Retained confroling ~~ Total
capital  reserve  reseve  sumplus - associates income ~ suplusé ~ funds reseve profits  Tofal interests  equity
RATEA
RH2TAEN
EhE HRETRE kBENIN  REEX i NERD (EEE)/ AR
Br GEE  BE  RUMES  BEMEME  OVERR EMBMY BREC BRGNS B RS

Aoss USS'000  USS'000  USS000  USs'000 USs'000 USS000  USSO00  USSO00  USSO00  USE000 USS'00  US§'000  USS'000
f B R T AR #n i fAa R i R R

(note 30) (note 32) (note 31) (note 40)

(%) (KR () (i)
At January 2023 \"2-=F-R-f 1004460 645004 13346 35605 - (@27 %2 191125 (005 10349 303040 1104998 4135468
Protfoss) for the year i/ E8) - - - - - - - - - 003 20004 (153609) 126428
Other comprehensie roomefor -~ AN
the year
Chneinfaraleotequy  ETRATERAEH
investments desigratd REEhRERES
atfa vl trough oer YRS, MeRE
comprehensive income, net of
fax - - - - - 80,682 - - - - B06e - 068
Shareofobercompenensive. - B EDENEN
income of associaies ks - - - - 1352 - - - - - 1R - 1R
Eichange dferences el EESNIERANERE
foreign operatons - - - - - - - - (30089) - (30088 (6917 (36,009)
Toel comprehensive ncome or he - ERZTNEEE
Jear - - - - 1382 80,662 - - (o0e) 2004 33980  (179526) 152464
Issue ofshares ¥ihh 22909 -1 - - - - - - - 2097849 - 207849
Equityseted shre ption NEREENEREE
anangements g - - 6% - - - - - - - 6% [T

Capld contbuon fomnon-~—~~ JHERER £
confrling inferests - - - - - - - - B

Tenser fomreened s~ EBE-EFLFEER

- TR T8

Qenereed by a subsidry ama - - - - - - - g - (g - -
A3 December 2023 \Z822E R
=+ 4933550 645404 12794 3565 135 56435 09267 23304 (60200 41610 6300095 1713549 8014544

continued %&/---
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARERBE

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE—Z-_=f+-A=t+—HILFE
Atrbutable to onners of the parent
BATREAEN
Fai vlug
reserve of
(ther fianciel
captl assels af
fesene falr vlug (Accumulated
Share and  trough oter Statory  Exchenge  losses)/ Non-
e Meer  opton contibued comprehensive  Revaluan  reserve  fuctuaon  Retaied contollng~ Tota
caotel resene  resene  surpls ncome  supls'  fnds  resene  poofls Tl inlerests  eouly
RATE
BER BhaEkan (Eif
BhE  BRR  oEEEC i ONERE BRY/ R
BhOAREE BB o7ER DVERE EEBWM GMRRE BB WM & B g
Moes— USS000 USS000 USS000~ US§a0 USS000  USS000  US§000  USsoo0  USS000  USSO00 USSon - Ussoun
B fa R B A R T R T AL A TR
(note 30) (note 32) (note 31) (note 40)
(HE0) (i) (Hs1) (i)
At January 2022 N5 F-3-8 1906152 ododo0 o H6E H005° 0T 1046 2131 (207663 267039 814188 3684047
Profoss) for te year iR/ B8 - - - - - -l M () do6sTt
Othr comprehensie ncome fo the year: ERAGRENE.
Change i fair vale of equiy ivestments desipated i £ RATEFALH
value trough other comprehensive ncome, retoftax 2EHEHREREY
LTERD, RiE - - (#5.59) - - - () - (%)
Exchange diferences related o foreign operaons REBERAERE - - - - (1) - (1508 (579) (309.468)
Tt comprehensie come o e e EMRENESE - - (#5559 - (B W99 10T (0 1T
Tensler of i value reseme pon e csposl of equiy — FEERATE: A&
investments a fir value trough ot comprehensve. — 2EAEHIRERER
inome ER0TERR - - - (198) - -w - -
Issue of shares ¥l £ 80 (239 - - - 504 504
Foty-etfed shee option arangemeris NEazEMERER: W - 114 - - - 114 8o
Captalcontbution fom non-contrling nerests HiReanE - - - - - - - R0 3200
Tinslr fom reened prffs generaled bya subsiday ~ BAE-BTAFELY
Hhih - - - - 5069 - P - -
At 31 December 2022 NS s e 1904462 ododon 13346 68 (2277 987 1911%° (0B 103498 3030470 1,104,908 4135468
Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an owner- #  EREERRRIERTFEIRZ —HEHYE
occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value. BIfHi5 R BIREY R,
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of Y BERERAIBESUBMEEZF L

US$1,367,436,000 (2022: US$1,036,008,000) in the consolidated
Statement of financial position.

ARE1E1,367,436,000F T —
1,036,008,000% T ),

—EF T T4,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AeRERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-Z-_=F+_A=1+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EZ=F k=St
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Mfat EY" FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEEHFBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax AT A 173,579 496,070
Adjustments for: AT SIBEHFAE .
Finance costs MISER 7 100,497 40,331
Share of profits of associates DEEE R RLRF (9,230) (12,171)
Interest income FEWA 5 (61,345) (26,944)
Dividend income from financial TR ER AR EIR
assets at fair value through other ENEREEMEEL
comprehensive income & B A 5 - (63)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWMZE. BREREZEE
property, plant and equipment BHEE e ) 5 206 (5)
Depreciation of property, plant and . BENMERETE
equipment 13 481,664 439,917
Changes in fair value of an KEYMEQNTEE
investment property 14 (103) (78)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 6,427 5,842
Amortisation of intangible assets A EHEH 16 12,348 11,101
Write-down of inventories to net GFEMRZR #REE
realisable value 6 113,271 19,612
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) S REWRBERE,RE
of trade receivables (AR 6 1,120 (16)
Impairment of items of property, Y. WENREEEBR
plant and equipment (] 13 2,476 858
Equity-settled share option expense NERAE B RERS 31 853 1,226
821,763 975,680
Increase in properties under development 3% FR 421 1 (44,105) (29,624)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL 380 ) 15,559 (154,646)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and notes B 5 EUGRIA KBRS
receivables w1 ) 12,082 (110,684)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other TEIEIE . H iU zoE K
receivables and other assets HuBEERLD %) 11,851 (4,248)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from &Y BEBSE 7 R IE R > 1 1
related parties hn) 1,787 (6,096)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits DM FE( 140 ), H D (168) 1,880
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B SRR D )1 (1,589) 42,614
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and H /b e~ FxIE & B i &
accruals (F )N (106,503) 110,940
Decrease in government grants ISR (5,257) (22,645)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JE AR 5 sRaEg
related parties (L) 7,780 (1,405)
Cash generated from operations RETEELENRS 713,200 801,766
Income tax paid ERATEE (71,505) (50,901)
Net cash flows generated from RETEHFERERETFE
operating activities 641,695 750,865

continued %&/- -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
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HEZZ-=—F+-A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E_-= —E-F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
e E F=1
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHFBERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EUHE 61,551 28,450
Purchases of items of property, plant and ﬁ%“%% T 2 78 S TE
equipment, prepaid lease payments and . BNEERCERER
intangible assets éﬁF (906,607) (996,182)
Purchases of an investment in an BERN—RBEARNIRE
associate - (6,717)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE. BERKEEE
property, plant and equipment FriS5RI8 52 109
Receipt of government grants for property, UEIEITE D BB KM%
plant and equipment BB 11,692 38,414
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFES ARMEE
assets at fair value through other Wt e Rl & EFTS IR
comprehensive income - 5,707
Dividends received from financial assets at WEIZ A FEFAE MR
fair value through other comprehensive WaRrErEERE
income - 63
Net cash flows used in investing RETEFARSRETHE
activities (833,312) (930,156)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D B EhIE 2,941,945 6,248
New bank loans IR ITE R 615,415 514,622
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JE#efgEzs &
interests 787,920 392,000
Interest paid BERAFE (106,570) (47,286)
Repayment of bank loans Bi8iRTE =% (422,120) (199,670)
Principal portion of lease payments YA ERS G (4,597) (3,246)
Receipt of government grants for finance  Ug ZI| B 76 B 76 & R B B
costs 2,997 11,100
Payment of share issue expenses YD EITE S (2,030) (832)
Increase in a pledged deposit —IE I IRTE I N (31,214) (759)
Net cash flows generated from METEFERERETH
financing activities 3,781,746 672177
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERBESESEYEINFEE
EQUIVALENTS 3,590,129 492 886
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F¥38 & RIS EEY
of year 2,008,765 1,610,140
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SMEMEREF) L, =i
net (13,713) (94,261)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAEGRAEEEY
END OF YEAR 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEBWERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTEES 23 4,638,292 735,800
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ RAESRREEAE DR =1E
maturity of less than three months when A KIZEHEIFE Bi1F 3K
acquired 946,889 1,272,965
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ~ HARRR MRS RERT
the statement of financial position and in ~ Fi%I3R & KIREEHEY
the statement of cash flows 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
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NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023
T_=F+ZA=+—H

Br SRR MY EE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER
Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited EIEERER QB ARA ) AB—
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January FR_ETRF A+ —BEEBT
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room MR ERAR, AREREMEE
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, BABBPREBB12HERBITHL
Hong Kong. The principal place of business is located at No. 2212FE, FEZEEME A LETRIS
288, Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai. R B & s B 35 288 5%
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RAAFMEBEBHAREER, RNF
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally W, RARKMFRABIEEBREFERE
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor A A EE M R ER
products and real estate development.
In the opinion of the directors, the parent of the Company is EERE, ARFNE AR A LGET
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”), (B )BERARI([FUER]), ZAF
which is a state-owned company established in the People’s AR EARLME([ FE | )0 HR
Republic of China (“PRC”") and supervised by the Shanghai FEMREEEEEEEZES ([ LG
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration MEHEZ | EEMEERT, ARFH
Commission (“Shanghai SASAC”). The ultimate parent of the SHRERARALETEHESL,
Company is Shanghai SASAC.
Information about subsidiaries BT ARINER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RARK)TFREIFFIBNAT
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered share  AQFEEERE AL
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HREL/ BEATER/
£ SR HEMBA ) B B FEEREE
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing ~ Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
Corporation (“Grace Cayman”) HEHs 00015 REER
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation ([ Grace Cayman |)
Shanghai Huahong Grace PRC/Chinese Mainland  RMB20,460,928 100% - Manufacture and sale of semiconductor
Semiconductor Manufacturing HE /hER N products
Corporation (*HHGrace')* 20,460,9287C CERHEFEEER
TRENE N ERERRAR
([Z=47N )
Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ US$2,536,852 22.2% 28.8%  Manufacture and sale of semiconductor
(*Hua Hong Wuxi")** &/ REIRY 2,536,855 7T products
BIPEE( A BRAF([#IA FERHEYERER
Bl
Shanghai Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB30,000 22.2% 28.8%  Real estate
Co., Ltd. (*Huahong Real Estate PE/ FERS AR#30,0007 development
Wiy FHERS

LRERER(EH ARO[ X8R
&5 )
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAIREEER(E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERTFARIMNER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered share ~ AAFEGEZE M
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ML/ BRTEE/
£ Bt AR ER oA Fr) B# B FEEEEH
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing  PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ US$4,020,000 21.9% 29.1%  Manufacture and sale of
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (“Hua Hong T8/ RERL 4,020,000%7C semiconductor products
Manufacturing’)* FERHETERER
EO SRS B ARAR[ S8
&)
Global Synergy Technology Limited PRC/Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
(‘GST) hE/FE 10%T g5
TBHERARAR[ ERH )
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. USA - 100% - Sales office
X - HERER
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co.,  Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Ltd. B 10,0008 HEMSR
* HHGrace is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company * FEYT 72 IR I B E AR BN A
under PRC law. AR
**  Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing are registered as o YT B AT R AR I R B A
Sino-foreign joint companies under PRC law. = 5557/\ ABRE.

***  Huahong Real Estate Wuxi is registered as a domestic company

under PRC law.

o BERERESRETEEETMBAE

TS
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an investment property
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in United
States dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PATEERERMIEE o

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 iEBIEL (4 )

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-

REEE(#E)

BamhkEMEE RSN & {EEEEEA

ZK%@!’AT%E/\&?H Pt as

EEHOHE RS E LB R, ZK%
BB A B Z MR 5 AE S H KB A AL

group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and BERAGB. . WA TEMES
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the BB A AR 2B,

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee MEE RIS NER = E s A=

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and
recognises the fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

2.2

—HHZANRES, AEESEHF
MERBEBIKIRE T, FTRARNMEA
*ZE* EDBE(ORBREENE ), RER

L UN-

M AL EREE —BTFRRMNEHE,
BIHEUERIEEEE( RERE ). &
ﬁ\ AT FEE SR 2 R N R B A

WHERMRBEMNEENAFERIER
EPEHIEtEEE’JF’ﬁ%XEﬂEO SRR
Hih 2R BN EROANEBELIBG
B EABERBTER WER ),
WARECEELERBEAESAER
AR —EERR,

EHEENBDREE

AEBECRMAERFREIABRRE R
FERIAT#A] RERT BB iR E %
Al

ERPERELENFEI7HR RBEEAY

BRI ENE IS RES SHHRRE
BHRELEANERRE
FoH(BIAR)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates EN e ST EA T E
(BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets ARG ERE 125 HE—XGEF
and Liabilities arising from (1EFTA) HEEREE
a Single Transaction TR
H
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - B gRENE 125, Bl AN E -

Pillar Two Model Rules

(B3I ) FoXRRY

#A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed
the material accounting policy information in note 2 to the
financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group’s approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

31 Decem oer 2022

BrEE R R MY EE

2. BETHER(E)

ﬂﬁ:$%@2%ﬂ&mwﬂ§‘

BBRNBE R INE

( i) )

175

BELNEERFZERN T

(a)

(b)

BB ENFIR(BIIAR)EX
ERBBEEEZSHABRER, M
FEHIZSHHEK, MERERY
ﬁ%i&i’%ﬁq,ﬁ\fméﬂ HEE, &t
BREHASEENEYEBMAE
M BERRON T EEREERZS

M ERIELEVRE, RIZERE
BER, BAMBHREERNEBRS
F25R(ERTAR VEL EZ L HEF
WS E RS AR &R

WERMIFR B, ARED
R BHRRMF2PREEESS
BREM . ZFETHRKENT
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P AR
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REtEERBABRIBRE G A
ito AMAKERTERBREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR MY EE

31 December 2023

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow
the scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The adoption of these amendments to
HKAS12 did not have significant impact to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 /International Tax Reform -
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected entities
to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect.
The Group has not yet applied the temporary exception
during the current year because the entities comprising
the Group are operating in jurisdictions in which the Pillar
Two tax law has not yet been enacted or substantively
enacted. The Group will disclose known or reasonably
estimable information related to its exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes in the consolidated financial statements by
the time when the Pillar Two tax law has been enacted
or substantively enacted and will disclose separately
the current tax expense or income related to Pillar Two
income taxes when it is in effect.

2. BETHER(E)

22 ST BRNES B R ME( & )

(c)

EEGTERE 125 (BATA ) A
E-XGELMEERR ERR
BAEFERR )T T HERB ARG
REAF125 P PISNOEE, EEA
B AR A AR S A B AR AR A AT 410
MEREENR S, PIIAEMR
WEME, Ait, BERARMERS
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( AR RA B SRR BE A ) RIRIE
ARG, KATEGERF12
DASCHENIEIRS SN £ N7
éﬁgO

EEGTERE12% (BTN
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EQEAFRERABEMNS
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R Ko 30 B8 5| A58 Il ME R B I IMB
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs,
if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

(the "2020 Amendments”)" *
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities

with Covenants (the

2020 Amendments’)"?

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements’
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

7 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

e e BRI IR R MIEE

2. BETHER(E)

23 ERMEEKRERZE BT

A =[]

(= R P AN

AEBEWERZEHMHHRRANER T
EEME H R ERZ BRIEFT BB YR
FEA, AEERRZFEKETETERM
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AR IRE LR ( 2ER )o
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e
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2.

31 December 2023

—E-=F+=A=+ !

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’'s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L RN

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BAMEMARERM BB

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users
of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier
finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the amendments
is permitted. The amendments provide certain transition reliefs
regarding comparative information, quantitative information
as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

8542 Al ( )

= R P AN
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2.

31 December 2023
—E-=%+-"A=+—H~

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments
require disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not being
exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative
amount of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial
application. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 31 D‘ecier*if')er 2023 /E\Zrﬁ%i&% BT#EI

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 ERETTEER
Investments in associates REE R TNRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property and equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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31 December 2023

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

31 December 2023
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at least at each financial year end.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.

31 December 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 42 to 50 years
Buildings 2 10 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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31 December 2023

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FETER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 04 BAEHHE &)

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments. Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not subject to impairment assessment.

31 December 2023
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2.

31 December 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days to 150 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FETER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 04 BAEHHE &)

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (tfrade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Costs for properties under development include
land costs, construction costs and other direct and indirect
development expenses in relation to property development.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
months that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTBER(E )

(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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31 December 2023

Ejﬁ%iﬁ%‘%lgﬁﬂ —E=F+ZA=A \
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.

31 December 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FETER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTBER(E )

(continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’'s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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31 December 2023

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described

in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
This subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BER(E)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXREHBE(E)

(continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Chinese Mainland and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other
than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences
are attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Chinese Mainland and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of Chinese Mainland and overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into US$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

31 December 2023
F—A f

3.

BrEE R R MY EE

EERHEH RES

B EEREARE N RAREAEL
HIE . EEFRRER, MBRHE. &5t
REREHRA. Ax. BENAED
ERCANLHBEMTE, WERHABE
BREKTE. ZFERELMETOTE
EMSEERAHERREITZENE
EXBENREAEETERAER,

H
REAAEB ST RRNBERET, BY
KA EEIBORSN, BEEEBEFLY
M RREEATRERNREATEN
HIETEAT

YVRHEESE - REEEBHEAA
AEEFVABREMEEEOATY
XHE, REUBABLHHERRIGMFZ
A, MAMTIEREANEZLES
mE R0 EREEERBRETT
RERYRZBREBD RFE, NEE
EETEREZSVEMBENTHE
REBD R K EHR, WHAERA AL
EHEAR.



326  HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED FE4[ & AR NG » 2023 ANNUAL REPORT FEHisE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P T EL R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than gooadwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Fair value of an investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from the
discounted cash flow projections.

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2023 was US$166,643,000 (31 December
2022: US$169,363,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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FHERE, JRESREAFERDE
ERXEREEMENRSENE, 2
FERLEERRAUEERRFRA
ETRNRNNBEER SR ENEIENL
ABEMZERRLEEENEEKRA
HHE, SHERREER, BRBAMS
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mERIRE,
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Shanghai and Wuxi, the PRC. Therefore, no segment
information based on the geographical location of non-current
assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segment
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented
as follows:

EEHBER

BHE, ~A&EESEEXEK

ﬁ ?E%E%%&L&%Eﬂf%ﬁﬂﬁ
o BREBAEFLDEERNBRAR
MEHEAEBERRRBRIEARE,
i, WD EATo

18 FE
%

AEBEANTIZEEVNRTE LER
B, RUBZRIFRDEENMIELE
RERNZIIDEBEM,

IR & SRS WA TR R P AT 8
o FRBEEPREME 7D HMHER D F
WAZFIET

2023 2022

—EC-=E —E_F

US$’ 000 US$'000

Ep FET

China (including Hong Kong) PE( BEEE ) 1,774,178 1,811,269
North America BlA=S 204,882 297,683
Asia (excluding China and Japan) M TEEPERAL) 149,087 210,610
Europe B 134,760 114,728
Japan SN 23,206 41,198
2,286,113 2,475,488

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products, where
the performance obligation is satisfied. The normal credit term
is 30 to 45 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

AEENENEREE LS EER S
B REBELEEERNHKSNER
BRI TR P R — AR S
BERE | MERBHRES )RR,
— R EM AR E30ESE, ETA
HAIRATN R,

EREEEFNER
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=1+—HILFE
WEEE-FFPMHEEMSKASEE
REBFBKRAI0BHIAL( 2T
+=—A=+—H. &),
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B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2023
—T-=F+=ZHA=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

AND OTHER EXPENSES

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other

expenses is as follows:

WA B AU AR Wi K H At
g2H

B B A YA B as K B B R O
DT

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EH FET
Revenue from contracts with customers FF &5 Q&
Sale of goods HEEm 2,286,113 2,475,488
Other income Hug A
Gross rental income from investment REREMELEEHENHESHA
property operating leases: 4a%A.
Fixed lease payments BEEHENK 14,259 14,358
Interest income FBUA 61,345 26,944
Government subsidies BT A 66,466 27,679
Sale of scrap materials HE R 1,418 1,476
Others Hh 882 524
144,370 70,981
Gains g
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE. BEMEEHEEE
plant and equipment FriS ik as - 5
144,370 70,986
Other expenses Hith&H
Foreign exchange loss, net HNEDE H 518 F 58 33,055 106,804
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEMZE. BERREEEEIE
plant and equipment 206 -
Others EAth 405 4,556
33,666 111,360
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FET
Types of goods Em@En
Sales of semiconductor products and FEEEMHENREEP
total revenue from contracts with BRI BIRA
customers 2,286,113 2,475,488
Timing of revenue recognition LON S
Goods transferred at a point in time and AR —BZEENE RN
total revenue from contracts REEPELRBIRA
with customers 2,286,113 2,475,488

The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue based on the
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2023 is

given in note 4.

HE-_Z-_-F+-_A=+—HLHF
E, AREEEMDEOWA D EEHIR
M54,
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. HANER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEHBAEF IR TFA)T
(crediting): P EIBEER.
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
Btat EY" FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 1,799,017 1,631,832
Depreciation of property, plant and ME. BEREHITE
equipment 13 481,664 439,917
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 6,427 5,842
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 16 12,348 11,101
Research and development costs TEER AR 206,522 160,936
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEAGEH=ED
measurement of lease liabilities MENK 33(b) 2,383 2,625
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 5 B 749 1,395
Employee benefit expense (including {EE@AFEX( BIEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RE&=ITIRA BB H
remuneration (note 8)): (FIzE8))
Wages,salaries and other benefits ~ TE&. o REMEF 282,762 382,804
Equity-settled share option expense J:M’ém%;:ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬂi 31 853 1,226
Pension scheme contributions iR Wi.ﬁriﬂf
(defined contribution scheme) * LS ?Xﬁriﬂ 36,909 31,660
320,524 415,690
Impairment of items of property, plant  ¥1%. WE LR EER
and equipment VERIE] 13 2,476 858
Provision/(reversal of) for impairment of & 5 EUEIE R ERE
trade receivables (#&mE) 21 1,120 (16)
Write-down of inventories to net TE\WHITMEE?%TE
realisable value 113,271 19,612
Changes in fair value of an investment &Y% N FEE
property 14 (103) (78)
* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REEEBIE F B A BE AR AT
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of BRI B B KK F o

contributions.
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B EmRMEE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEA
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EY FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFTFIE 99,429 39,451
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,068 880
Total “sEt 100,497 40,331
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBNRBSTHAENHMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, RiE FHEBI N EERQRIEME383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (@a). (b). C)RNER(AT(HEEES
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 MEBEEE RO F oW BN REEE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ENESTHABEHMIOT.
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F TE-F
US$’000 US$'000
ES F=T
Fees e 216 234
Other emoluments: EfthE .
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥, ;28R EDFIZE 196 206
Performance related bonuses HARIR MR TEAL 196 452
Equity-settled share option expense N A E AR 28 57
Pension scheme contributions RS R B 10 9
Subtotal N 430 724
Total fees and other emoluments BRAREMRE AT 646 958
In prior year, certain directors were granted share options, in RBEFE, ETESFSRERARTNE
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option AR i Et B A H m A & E R o) IR T g
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out MR RE, HE P BERNTBREW
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such 31, HEARREN A TERREER
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit RIBEXRER, URAEHBHEEAER
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date REFEWBHRERARNSED T AR
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements EERESTRABNEHHEES,

for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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e L BRI SRRMIEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERRSTHABNEH
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIYFFTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FHANMBLIERTEETIAHOES
during the year were as follows: Ny
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FExT
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SRAE R 72 78
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FiEE, KFa+ 72 78
Long Fei Ye - 72 78
Total #Et 216 234
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWBEN TRULIERITESH
independent non-executive directors during the year HtbMe( —T=——F. &),

(2022: Nil).



332  HUAHONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #FEI¥:EEEHPRAF] o 2023 ANNUAL REPORT FEHE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT ERRMIEE St .

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREEITHRABNEMH
REMUNERATION (continued) (%8 )
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) FHFTESERESTHRAER
Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
FH. 2ER  ERRHN UERLEN  BAReHE
He BENAlE ML BRERX A E P

US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  USS$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

2023 —3-=%
Chief executive: RATHAR:
Mr. Junjun Tang EHELE - 196 196 28 10 430
Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
FE.ORRR  BREE) NEREEN RAEHE
e ENFla WA BRERX % G
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET T T TET TET
2022 i S
Chief executive: RATHAR:

Mr. Junjun Tang EYERE - 206 452 57 9 724
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BAEESEY, HEEEN -
any emoluments during 2023 and 2022. TEER T - —FERREAE

1S
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RER, BEEEENTEERES

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B S T,
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2022: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

TEREEHER
TR, IERaFEERE—RZES(N
ARETBAB ) T4, —%&E

B(NMATRSTTERAER)), EFHBFESR
REXHIEES, FA, HEAME
(ZZE-F. HB )WIEARAEEN
EREEEMEFMFBSOT .

2023 2022

—E—-= —E-F

US$’ 000 US$'000

E$ FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Bl AL R EWH 1,163 1,127
Performance related bonuses A5 IR AR TEAL 336 771
Equity-settled share option expense DHEREENERERS 6 121
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHR 29 9
Total st 1,534 2,028

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors
of the Company and whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FEENIA THIBOLIEARBEEH
RmFEEABMT .

Number of employees

EBEAH

2023 2022

—E-=F T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7C 23,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 723,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £ 4,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 25,500,000/ 7T - 1
Total #EEt 4 4

In prior years, share options were granted to four non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, NAFEFERIFHESITH
ABM RS EEREAAKBIEHR
BB, HLE—SFBRMHR
RMEES1INEE, MMBEBEENAFED
mEBMNERRER, YNRLEH
BEEARAFERBERRARNSED
SPARIFE R RFRBTTHRA BN R
= EEMFMKET,
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Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2022: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2022: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT") as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Chinese Mainland are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported
in their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of
25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2023 to 2025.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with the approval from the tax authorities in charge,
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong
Manufacturing, are entitled to an exemption from CIT for five
years, commencing from the first year that Hua Hong Wuxi
and Hua Hong Manufacturing generate taxable profits, and
a deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five
years. Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing were in
accumulated tax loss positions as at 31 December 2023 and
the tax holiday has not yet begun.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 33.58%
(2022: 33.58%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax at
a rate of 21% during the year (2022: 21%), as well as state tax
at 8.84% (2022: 8.84%).

RERNEBGNALI65% —F -
F. 16.5% B ERZAFER . BHRA
RA R —REBRBZEMAZHFRER
FRAEBSEIAVKRA, B ERE
BMERIELERE( —T_—F. &),

MR ARBERSESEMKIZNTA
AR S S EEA S XA ( M
FRMRIN R EEAET, WAETL
RIBAMERMAEH( BEMEH )

PRBEARRBES B M A EEREA
LENT LA, EREREABEHEMR
BRZABRNPEIEZERE T2 HMER
TR AIR 25 % A TE T R B Bl (b %
FTiE®io

RIEFBBEEE R ERRERBEE
W E, NEBE—KFRRIELRS
RFEERK Al SfEMEE |, ek’
R =Fx2 T - AFHBEKI5%
HI(E BB R T

RIBF BEAERDER AR EN G T E#
BAftE, NEBWTFARFELESNLE
STRGE A AT M8 R M RUE AL
AR N E —FRAOFERRHND
XN, MERAFAEXEEMFG
BT RBE0%NEER, R-F_=4F
TZA=+—8, FUEHRETRE
BN RABEEERE, BRBEER
F}ﬁté\O

ARRBEBAREMAL K EEN T AT
JE1233.58%( —ZT =4 . 33.58% )H)
EEREHM,

AR aEEBRFMA ST R EENT AR
JERNERNIZ21%( ZE = Z4F. 21% )Y
R EEMESRENS.84%( —FE ==
F. 8.84% VMM REF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The major components of income tax expense of the Group

are as follows:

31 December 2023
—E-=f+=-A=+—H

B RS ¥R R B

10. FriS%i( & )

7K 46 [ 5719 T4 B9 % #0 T B4R 2049 A
T

2023 2022

—E-= T _F

US$’ 000 US$'000

Ey FET

Current income tax — PRC IR - B 57,969 74,516

Current income tax — elsewhere EHIATIST — Efbi[® 43 43
Withholding tax on the distribution of FEIFAF SRR SR TEHE

dividend from a PRC subsidiary - 2,500

Deferred tax (note 28) IRAETIE( fIFE28 ) (10,858) 12,440

Total st 47,154 89,499

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

BARE REKEND F R BEEMER
ERERH)EE W R 25% 5t B A E
MEMBIARMY, BRERREFED

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: AR ST VERRIN T .
2023 2022
—E-=F TE-F
US$’000 US$'000
ES F=T
Profit before tax A& A 173,579 496,070
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% RETEIRR25% T E T I8 43,395 124,018
Effect of different tax rates for specific R D KBRS & REMA
provinces and countries or enacted by B AR E T E
local authority (47,962) (57,612)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  Ht_E— BRI & BIF B A R
previous periods (108) 309
Profits attributable to associates BN AR (1,387) (1,826)
Income not subject to tax RHWA (1,548) -
Expenses not deductible for tax iR 1,063 434
Tax losses not recognised due to tax E R EA M AR MR AT IR &8
holiday 119,932 50,695
Tax losses not recognised due to B 2R SRS K P] BE 2 HE JE ARt v A1 T
improbable future taxable profits RERHTRIBEE 1,551 1,481
Temporary differences not recognised RERE = 397 129
Additional deduction of research and T 38 A 2 L M 300K
development costs (56,503) (42,532)
Additional deduction of equipment B EMIR - (3,630)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2022: AR B BT R B AT R g A
10%) on the distributable profits of the A10%( ZFE=—F. 10% )
Group's PRC subsidiary FTETEIIRIE (11,676) 18,033
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate B AEBERRRTENFIBEM S 47,154 89,499
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11.

12.

31 December 2023
—Z-=%t-A=t—H

DIVIDEND 11. K2
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’000 US$'000
EYH FET
Proposed final - HK$16.5 cents (2022: Nil) i AHE - S L @165
per ordinary share B —E——F. &) 36,234 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.165 per Share (2022: nill), equivalent to US$36,234,000
(2022: nill) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023(the “Final Dividend”). The Final Dividend is denominated
and declared in Hong Kong dollars, among which, dividends
for RMB Shares will be paid in RMB calculated using the
average central parity rate between Hong Kong dollars and
RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China for the week
immediately preceding the date of the declaration of dividend
by the Board. Dividends for Hong Kong Shares will be paid in
Hong Kong dollars.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,477,978,482 (2022: 1,303,399,389) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
the exercise price on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

REENZZRYREAFARABRER
RIEEBEAF R LHER T RIFE,

EEeranEEeE_E-_=+_-A
T+ BLHFERERBEREEESR
0165 ( —E=-—4F. &), HER
36,234,000 m( —E=-=F. E)[ K
HIKRE ) REIBRBUAETHERE
K, ERAREROHOBREUARES
, REEEEeE RKREB B —R
PR ARIBITRAMES THEARE TS
FREEE., BEROMRESZAET
S fto

BRAEBEREFEARGE
R &

BRERZF T ERT QB L ERE
BFAEAEBGFRZANERFARND B
771,477,978,482%( —_ T = — 4.
1,303,399,389 /% )& i I Y M#E F 19 &
8,

BRCEERNSRNRBEEQRER
IR A AREFREMTE, s8R
KRRz EBBRIEF OB A EERE
AENERABZFAND ETEEREE
I E R P B BRI RTT
AR BRASEBRFATTREET2E
BRI 8,
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRAREBEREREAELSE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE REBF( &)
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREEAR R ESER TR E TIER.
based on:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FTxx FET
Earnings 27|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity N RRIERRERSE ABEET
holders of the parent 280,034 449 912

Number of shares

BRHEE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Shares iaba
Weighted average number of ordinary ARETESRERBFINFEAND
shares in issue during the year used in BT BRI E
the basic earnings per share calculation 1,477,978,482  1,303,399,389
Effect of dilution — weighted average LTBRESENE TN E.
number of ordinary shares:
Share options R 8,553,472 10,545,888

Total wast 1,486,531,954  1,313,945,277
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31 December 2023
—EC=F+-A=+—H

13. Y%, MERRE

Plant and Office Motor ~ Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BT BEREE  BORG RE HENERE IR @t
USS'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USss' 000 USss' 000
Tin Tin TER e TEn Tin TER
31 December 2023 ZBCZETZAST-R
At 1 January 2023: \ZZZZE-f-A.
Cost A 442,247 6,640,233 49,805 1,506 3,968 703,329 7,841,088
Accumulated depreciationand  ZiHTERE
impaiment (35767 (418418  (32.973) (1,079) (B3910)  (15461)  (4473372)
Net carrying amount FEE 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 427 58 667,868 3,367,716
At 1 January 2023, net of \ZZI=E-A-R,
accumulated depreciafionand B REFRERAE
impairment 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 a1 58 687,868 3,367,716
Additions NE - - - - - 692,950 692,950
Transfers 25 158 613,202 5,378 79 - (618,817) -
Disposal RE - (44) (5) (16) - - (65)
Depreciation provided FREENE
during the year (15021) (460965  (5529) (134) (16) - (48164)
Impairment e - (2,476) - - - - (2,476)
Exchange realignment ERHE (3372) (41,672) (280) ) (1) (11,837) (57,169)
At 31 December 2023 net of RZBZZETZA=T-A,
accumulated depreciationand B E:FHERAE
impairment 188,245 2,564,096 16,397 349 4 750,164 3,519,292
At 31 December 2023; jme Sty gl el ¥
Cost A 423,230 7,138,922 66,032 1,236 3,901 765,367 8,398,688
Accumulated depreciation ZAERAE
and impairment (234985)  (4574826)  (49,635) (687) (3860) (1520  (48793%)
Net carrying amount ERFE 188,245 2,564,096 16,397 349 4 750,164 3,519,292
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

31 December 2023
F+-R=

13. %, BERRE&)

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BT BRREE  BORE B RENERE IR et
US$000 US$000 US§'000 US§000 US$000 US$000 US§'000
e e e e S TE TEL
31 December 2022 ZECCEtZAZT-H
At1 January 2022: S Stk s
Cost A 480,349 6,752,780 64,260 1,805 4,289 252902 7,556,385
Accumulated depreciationand  ZiHAERE
impairment (230048)  (4133223)  (44,329) (1,244) (4,257) (16,889)  (4439,884)
Net carrying amount SHFE 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 ? 236,013 3,116,501
At 1 January 2022, net of \ZZIZE-A-R,
accumulated depreciationand IR EFHTEREE
impairment 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 2 236,013 3,116,501
Additions hE - - - - - 955,100 955,100
Transfers a5 1609 478,39 3556 53 4 (483 655) -
Disposal RE - (194) (236) (1) - - (441)
Depreciation provided ERERAE
during the year (15,646) (419.467) (4,655) (136) (13) - (439917)
Impairment HE - (822) (36) - - - (858)
Exchange realignment EH AR (19,.884) (221,418) (1734) (40) (3) (19,590) (262,669)
At 31 December 2022, net of RZFZZETZA=T-R,
accumulated depreciationand B Z:FTERAE
impairment 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 a1 58 687,868 3,367,716
At 31 December 2022: 2y g el
Cost KA 40247 6,640,033 49,805 1,506 3,968 703329 7,841,088
Accumulated depreciationand  BEFTERAE
impairment (235,767)  (4,184,182) (32973) (1,079) (3910) (15461)  (4,473372)
Net carrying amount KE¥E 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 a1 58 687,868 3,367,716

For the year ended 31 December 2023, certain items of the
Group’s machinery and office equipment of US$2,476,000 (31
December 2022: US$858,000) were obsolete with a minimal
recoverable amount determined based on their fair value less
costs of disposal and were therefore fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$1,487,211,000
(31 December 2022: US$1,803,095,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26).

HE-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—8LF
B, AEERSEERRARETETIEER
2,476,000%7T( 2 =ZF+=-H=+
—H. 858,000 T BB, MR
SRFER LS EMN U E S EE
)N, BAmEERE.

WZE-_=F+=-A=+—H, KEI
BREDFEA1,487,211,000ET( — 2=
:$+*ﬂ_+ H. 1,803,095,0003
TTRETYE. BERREDIEMATR
TTL/{HX SAEBERRITHE ( HIFE26 )
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As management concluded there are impairment indicators for
long-term assets of Hua Hong Wuxi as at 31 December 2023.
Therefore, an impairment assessment was performed for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The impairment test is based
on the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the long-term
assets is allocated. The key assumptions that management
used in the valuation are as follows:

13. %, BERRE&)

HMERERS, R-F_=F1+_A
=1t—0B, EUEHRPEEFERE

PR, Ak, $EE—FT-_=F+_A
=t —BHUEFEETTREMN. BE
AR ERREENREELFEMN
AP REAER, BEERETE

RHEE/EWT

Carrying  Recoverable  Impairment  Years of the Key assumptions
amount amount amount  forecast period for the forecast period
FEE AkEeE  AERE  BAHEH RSN EERR
US$'000 US$'000
TET TEx
Hua Hong Wuxi #4485 2,770,066 2,907,190 - 5years based on the Discount rate: 14.5%;
budget or forecast and revenue growth rate: 3.6%-
3 years based on stable 32.4%; gross profit margin:
growth rate (2.1)%-53.4%; net profit
RBERBETASER margin: (16.5)%-43.7%
BRI R L R3F BHE. 145%; ALK
. 36%%324%; EFl
K. (21)%E53.4%; FF
K. (16.5)%%43.7%
2,770,066 2,907,190 -
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31 December 202?
w1 —R

BrEE R R MY EE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REYE
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-_F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Ey FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREEAE 169,363 184,883
Net gain from a fair value adjustment AT EAZRKEG TR 103 78
Exchange realignment & H (2,823) (15,598)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—HHEREE 166,643 169,363

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai,
the PRC. The directors have determined that the investment
property is an industrial property based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2023 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on capitalisation of income
derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property.

Every year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 33 and note 35(b)).

AEENREMELRTELE, BF
EERMENEE. BFHMEBRETR
BMERTIEME,

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H, ~&HE
MIEEMECRE - RAEZEERNE
SIHEMPERTEETHERAERER
NEIRAFETERET T ER, ZEES
ZT7HARONBRYEBEAER KA
BB AER T

B, AEENMELERIEEER
E%E%%ﬁ@%ETKEI%¥W%
miEE, ERRERBHTISN TR,
BE BUMKETABIEEKE, K
SENYELE LM GRERF RIS
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁk,ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
—RIEERR L GEES

WEYERELLALH LA TRIM
FE33FIFIFES5(0) )o

( B
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31 December 2023
—ZEZ-=#+-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s
investment property, which is an industrial property, was
made using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31 December 2023 and 2022. During the year, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

14. REWHE(E)

AFEER
NEEREWE(ALEDE N T
—FRZE_FF+_A=1+—HHA
HNFEFE2ERERTAIERE A
YR ( B3 1EH, RFR, FH1RESE
AW EATENEER, BEIRL
EEANEN( T - —F. &),

TXREEMEGEMRBBERMRE

key inputs to the valuation of the investment property: T ASBHE.
Significant unobservable Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average
TEME B E R BANAI BRI AU IR
As at 31 December 2023 Term and reversion method  Estimated rental value US$13.1
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB92.00)
RZZ_=F+_A=+—H FHRERZX HEFHEEE(8FHAER) 13AET(HER
AK%92.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
FHERE
Reversionary yield 7.25%
BRI E
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%
REZEEX
As at 31 December 2022 Term and reversion method  Estimated rental value Us$13.2
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB89.00)
RZTBZ_ZF+A=+—H FHRERZX EEHEEEE(8FAAER) 132ET(HEER
AR#89.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
ESIEETES
Reversionary yield 7.25%
1BEREHRE
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%

REIZEEX
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. REWE(E )

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value
at appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent, the
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary
value was estimated based on the market rents, the market
yield and the reversionary periods.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of
the investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in
the long-term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the
fair value of the investment property. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long-term vacancy rate.

DR EBR(E)

RIBFHRERE, RFEDEHARR
BHOEENBESWA, IHZFHELD
METEAERRAGTIREEBE, HiR
WERENMcL R BT EAHEEEN
EH,

EHEEDREEAERHEMFIANERA
Me. HMEFHR(EE )EREMG
ito BEREENREMERS. mEE
WEREEGE

M HEEBERTEHESFEREXER
RIEEF T )BEBIEEMENR
Elzfﬁjifpaai‘j]ﬂ/ W) REIZEERK
BRIR R BB AN EF TF%)H%E@Z&
BYEN RN ERERD ),

mms, BT EEEERNRRE
gFEM, HeFBRERMEFIREHIBRE
mES, MERPEERHBERAE
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

31 December 2023
—E=FtZA=t—H

15. FHEEE

2023 —EC=H
Land use
rights  Buildings Total
T ihfEFARE BF et
US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000
FEx FEx FEx
At 1 January 2023, net of R-ZE-_=F—H—H,
accumulated depreciation B EFHTE 62,262 16,163 78,425
Additions NE - 7,862 7,862
Depreciation provided during FANFHEITE
the year (1,641) (4,786) (6,427)
Exchange realignment b H R (1,030) (285) (1,315)
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+-A=+—H 59,591 18,954 78,545
2022 —E-_F
Land use
rights Buildings Total
b R gF 4ET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022, net of RZEZ=—F—HF—H,
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE 60,191 15,140 75,331
Additions = 9,393 6,394 15,787
Depreciation provided during FRERITE
the year (1,952) (3,890) (5,842)
Exchange realignment P& 5 FAEE (5,370) (1,481) (6,851)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE__F+_A=+—8H 62,262 16,163 78,425

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s land use
rights with a carrying value of US$44,319,000 as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: US$50,231,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note
26).

R-TE-_=F+-fF=+—H, ~&EE
R-ZEB-_=F+_A=+—HEAEAS

44,319,000 7t (

e

=

E+-RA=

+—H. 50,231,0003 7T )A#&E T i
FRAEDIRT FRITUBRESAEERR
TR E ( BI3E26 )o
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31 December 2023
—B-=Ff+tZA=1—H

16. BV EE

B RS ¥R R B

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TERMEFA LIgus st
US$’ 000 US$’000 US$’ 000
FEx FEx FEx

31 December 2023 —E=F%+=ZHA=+—H
At 1 January 2023: AT -_=%—H—H.

Cost B#N 270,734 147,145 417,879

Accumulated amortisation and RET S RORE

impairment (259,246)  (125,647)  (384,893)

Net carrying amount BREFE 11,488 21,498 32,986
At 1 January 2023, net of R-—E-_=F—H—H,

accumulated amortisation and ks ZFTEE MORE

impairment 11,488 21,498 32,986
Additions NE 17,112 12,606 29,718
Amortisation provided during FAEL

the year (4,646) (7,702) (12,348)
Exchange realignment bE H (147) (382) (529)
At 31 December 2023, net of RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H,

accumulated amortisation and IRk 25T KR E

impairment 23,807 26,020 49,827
At 31 December 2023: RZZEZ=F+—A=+—H:

Cost B#N 283,354 157,237 440,591

Accumulated amortisation and R RORE

impairment (259,547) (131,217) (390,764)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 23,807 26,020 49,827
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

6. BEWEE(HE)

Process

technology
licence Software Total
TEEAMETA] LIRS #Et

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FTET TET

31 December 2022 B -F+ZA=+-—H
At 1 January 2022: R-ZE-_—F—HF—H.

Cost B#N 297,366 146,577 443,943

Accumulated amortisation and RETEE RORE

impairment (279,314)  (129,317)  (408,631)

Net carrying amount BREFEE 18,052 17,260 35,312
At 1 January 2022, net of R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H,

accumulated amortisation and kR ZFTEE NORE

impairment 18,052 17,260 35,312
Additions NE - 11,718 11,718
Amortisation provided during F AL

the year (5,248) (5,853) (11,101)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B (1,316) (1,627) (2,943)
At 31 December 2022, net of RZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8H,

accumulated amortisation and IRk 2T RE

impairment 11,488 21,498 32,986
At 31 December 2022: RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H.

Cost BN 270,734 147,145 417,879

Accumulated amortisation and R RRE

impairment (259,246) (125,647) (384,893)
Net carrying amount AREFAE 11,488 21,498 32,986

As management concluded there are impairment indicators for
long-term assets of Hua Hong Wuxi as at 31 December 2023.
Therefore, an impairment assessment was performed for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The impairment test is based
on the recoverable amounts of the CGU to which the long-term
assets is allocated. The key assumptions that management
used in the valuation can be found in note 13.

WAERERR, RZEZ=F+=A
—+—A8, EUEHHNRPEEFLTR
EFR, Blit, HEE-_T-_=F+=
A=+—BI-FE#T T REN G, &
BEARUD I REENIR CEAEN
WA E B AER, BEENTMF
FERANEZRE2HMET13,
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2023

F+ZA=+

B RS ¥R R B

17. REFE R RNRE

2023 2022

—g-= —E-—F

USs$’ 000 US$'000

EY F=ET

Carrying amount REE 139,099 130,721

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

TEMERRFBOT.

Percentage of

Place of Paid-in  equity interest
registration and capital attributable
Name of company business BRI to the Group  Principal activities
RMB’000 REBE N
NCIES B EEME ARBTIT BEEDE FEEB
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/Chinese 548,000 50% Technology
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland development and
(“Huahong Technology FEL B A investment
Development”) BT RIRE
PEEIRRERBRAR
([ ORISR |)
Shanghai Huahong Investment PRC/Chinese 480,000 20%  Investment
Development Co., Ltd (“Huahong Mainland "E
Investment Development”) FRE R A
PEEIREHERARDA
([FEMREER )

The Group's voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and

50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AEBABEIRIEERESE NN EE
MoaF DL D Bl A40% K 50%,

AEBFEBARBNEEFRARAEZ
NG g S
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. RBFE QA TINRE(EH )

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREMET R E RETRE SR
information of Huahong Technology Development and RIBI S E R
Huahong Investment Development:

Huahong Technology

Development Huahong Investment Development
E R BER EIIREERE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=F —ET-= —EC-=F T

+=A=+-8 +ZA=+t-B +-A=+-8 +-A=+-=

US$’000 US$'000 US$’ 000 US$'000

FER FET Ey FET

Current assets MENVEE 24,581 31,186 8,917 24,365
Non-current assets  FERENVEE 295,158 307,918 115,646 76,980
Current liabilities mEEE (63,265) (91,340) (169) (186)
Non-current liabilities ZERENBE (22,763) (23,606) (13,177) (7,949)
Net assets FEE 233,711 224,158 111,217 93,210

Net assets, excluding FE&E,

goodwill TRiEEE 233,711 224,158 111,217 93,210
Reconciliation to the  ANEEERELE A A

Group’s interest in B e T BR

the associate:

Proportion of the PINCSER) N /N
Group’s interest in Coprdisatl]
the associate 50% 50% 20% 20%
Carrying amount of & &BREE
the investment 116,856 112,079 22,243 18,642
Huahong Technology Huahong Investment
Development Development
FEIRERER EIREER
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E-F —EC-=F —E-F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
EYH F=r FTEx FET
Revenue WA 51,500 26,283 811 850
Profit and total i A & 2 RS

comprehensive income 4a%E 13,341 14,832 19,655 23,775
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31 December 2023

B RS ¥R R B

—ZE-=F+-_A=+—H
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 18. €WIRE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EY FET

Equity investments designated at fair value f§E AR A FEFAEMEE

through other comprehensive income: &l &N =

Listed equity investments EmRAEE 2,429 2,442
Unlisted equity investments FELETRAIEE 268,077 176,190
Total “sEt 270,506 178,632

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are listed equity investment in
Shanghai Aiwei Electronic Technology Service Co., Ltd. and
unlisted equity investments in Shanghai Huali Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. (“Huali Micro”) and QST Corporation (“QST") with
carrying amounts of US$265,128,000 and US$2,949,000,
respectively, which were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.

EEAZAFEFAHEME2EKEN
AZ AL E AShanghai Aiwei Electronic
Technology Service Co., Ltd. &) /A%
1% E DA R BREE S Bl 4265,128,0005
702,949,000k TH) FIBENMEFE
AR ZEAM )R EEWEREAR
RNA[WERE | )BIELETRARE,

MASBERAZSRET RO ST
BIEATEFAEMEEKE, TR

ZEIEBERIEY,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BRHYE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
US$’ 000 US$'000
ES F=7T
Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—BHEREEAE 134,723 114,492
Additions RE 44,105 20,231
As at 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—8H 178,828 134,723

The Group’s properties under development are recognised in
leasehold land situated in Chinese Mainland.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately US$86,565,000 (31 December 2022:
US$88,033,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 26).

AEBE R PENE A E L
R

RZBE-_=F+-A=+—08, K&
B R Y EIRE4E486,565,000
En(ZFE=Z=F+=-A=+—8H
88,033,000 7t ) B LA ER 5 T 7K
SERITREAEK( 726 ),
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20.

31 December 2023

—T-=F+=ZHA=+—H
INVENTORIES 20. ZE

2023 2022

—=E-= —TE - F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FER FE=

Raw materials RM 261,359 255,511
Work in progress TR 149,321 179,510
Finished goods UK 111,912 171,039
522,592 606,060
Provision for inventories FEEE (72,843) (28,000)
Total 45T 449,749 578,060

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. ESEWREREWREE

2023 2022

—E-= B F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FER FE=T

Trade receivables B S REWEIE 214,414 229,409
Notes receivables RUNEE 66,951 64,038
281,365 293,447
Impairment of trade receivables B S EWGRIBRE (2,696) (1,591)
Net carry amount REFE 278,669 291,856

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 90 days. There
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEEEETFNESRPUEESR
T, EEH-RA/0EI0KR, AEEY
BEAETEERR, AEELENE
B 5 RWSRSRBER A EAE A m SR
REMEERAER. BHREFTER

280

BERZAYE, EHRBFAREKRE
R FIRRE R R )RR DTN T

2023 2022

—EBE-=F —EC-F

US$’ 000 US$’000

ESpH FET

Within 3 months 31E A AR 232,485 221,849
3 to 6 months 3268 A 43,762 20,475
Over 6 months but within one year BEANEAER—FA 2,422 49,532
Total 5T 278,669 291,856
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L RN

21. EZRWRERERRE( & )

(continued)

The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade and
bills receivables are as follows:

B 5 RYHIA BRI RER IR
\ ﬁ@ﬂz[ﬂt

2023 2022

—EC-=F —E-_F

US$’ 000 US$'000

ES FET

At 1 January w—A—H 1,591 1,721
Impairment losses, net (note 6) RIEERFRE( 56 ) 1,120 (16)
Write-off b= - _
Exchange realignment [E 5 J9 % (15) (114)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2,696 1,591

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade and notes receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and notes receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses have also
incorporated forward-looking information. The expected credit
loss rates for trade and notes receivables that were not yet
past due or aged within 3 months are minimal.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

AEEFEBEBMBEREERNFEINRAT
P EEMEEBRZBTE, &%
AL FFELAT R B 5 UG IR R B R &
REEEAFESNEMER, RFHER
HEEER, E5RIGRERERERE
ERBAREERRFEaHREE
TH#, BHMEEERETEEREEE
Ko MABHMRE R3EAARNES
IR N ERRENERERERAE
&K,

RERE B HRAREBREETRED
T, AEtERHERER, BEXLE
REBBRUEBRRANZEEF 258
A BN, EmBRi, FFHRE LT
A ARMERESEAMTEARERRR
ARBES D WARKBETE, %8
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BRASHMERBEEER. BEAHR
REREERTERNEERASEER,
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The credit quality of the trade and bills receivables is
follows:

As at 31 December 2023

1. EZRRRERERRE( &)

as H 5 OB e M R 0 5 B A
T

R-®-=F+-F=+-8

Past due
BHA
Less than 3to6 Over 6
Current 3 months months months Total
BE 2 M3@A 3Z6MEA 6EAMNL &5t
Expected credit TEEMEEEEX
loss rate 0.06% 1.45% 28.57% 100.00% 0.96%
Gross carrying amount BREI#AME( T35t )
(US$'000) 273,399 5,505 14 2,447 281,365
Expected credit losses J&HZE E518
(US$'000) (F%71) 165 80 4 2,447 2,696
As at 31 December 2022 R=B-Z=F+=H=+—H
Past due
Less than
Current 3 months Over 1 year Total
ey AR3MEHA —FLAE A&t
Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEEE 0.05% 1.63% 100.00% 0.54%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) BREBE(T3XT) 288,999 3,065 1,383 293,447
Expected credit losses (US$'000) FEEEEEE
(F=7) 158 50 1,383 1,591
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FERIE. HtEW H
AND OTHER ASSETS ﬂﬂﬁ%

2023 2022

—=E-= —E-F

US$’ 000 US$'000

EpH FET

Other receivables H b fE U FR I8 12,520 24,476

Prepayments and other assets FENREREMEE 11,393 4,009

Value-added input tax HE(E R IR T RE 10,796 20,687

34,709 49,172

Impairment of other receivables H fth & WK IR R B (888) (899)

Total HET 33,821 48,273

Other receivables are repayable on demand.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

HAb U IRBIR B RIEE

S fth U MR R T 1 B RS 4R O 5 B A
T

2023 2022

—EC=E —E-_F

US$’ 000 US$'000

Ep FET

At 1 January Rn—H—H 899 955
Exchange realignment b H % (11) (56)
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H 888 899

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for
other receivables. Other receivables related to debtors that
are in default are classified as Stage 3 and the lifetime ECL
rate was estimated to be 100% based on historical credit loss
experience, resulting in an impairment balance of US$888,000
(2022: US$899,000). The remaining other receivables are
classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase in credit
risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 were considered to be insignificant.

REEFEA M AT E b IR
MIEHEERE, BENEHAMBEN
HEa W IEREAE R, RIEFE
SEEEBELRETEHEREEEE
R 5100%, EIEREA#RA888,0003%
o ZE==4%. 899,000% T ), E#
HEmEKFIBEREAE —BE, VY
R % BB R R EE ([ E ARG
e ErJlkEE2RBERAERIRRT
FE, MRZE_=FER_TE_-__F+
A=+ HAMEHEEBREER AT
FER,
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23.

31 December 2023
ZE=F+ZA=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

23. RERBEEB/YIUREEF

PLEDGED DEPOSITS EE N

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EYH FET
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHEER 4,638,292 736,530
Time deposits TEBRTE 3K 978,977 1,273,277
5,617,269 2,009,807

Less: Vo
Pledged deposits [REEETIVER /N (32,061) (1,015)
Others Hith (27) (27)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 5,585,181 2,008,765

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$4,849,390,000 (2022:
US$1,305,378,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RBERR, NEEHRS MIRITHER
AREMERTIUARE( AR |)
FTH{E, 7#%4,849,390,000%7T( ==
. 1,305,378,000%% 7T )o AREART]
BRiBsHEMER, R, REFH
A (HNEE BRG] ) R(HEE. EE
RAEEERRTE ), NEBERESBER
RARMNEXFORITHARBE LIRS
Hi &,

RITRE DHREE A RITERAEIRF
BREE, MENERERIEFA
SENASREFTRAMLRE=[EA
N, RE R HFE HF R R EREUH
Bo BITHEBRITFRANEER T BT
I #852 H)RCERAV IR T o
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An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

24. B G ENRIA

o ST B IR SRR EE

RBEYRZEZ A, AKEE5

FEN SRIBEVEREE DATIAT .

as follows:
2023 2022
—=E-= —E-F
US$’000 US$'000
Ey FET
Within 1 month REEINA 149,116 141,338
1 to 3 months 1 31E A 42,579 60,772
3 to 6 months 326{EA 16,166 11,699
6 to 12 months 6Z=121E A 11,158 9,388
Over 12 months 12{E A A E 16,391 13,802
Total 45T 235,410 236,999

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BHRMNFAREER, Tt ER—R

RB0AREB0KHIRE A

25. HttENREARE4E

2023 2022

—E-=F B F

US$’ 000 US$'000

EpH FET

Other payables and accruals EAbfERSRIA R E B A 251,248 318,917
Contract liabilities AHBE 86,545 192,588
Payroll and bonus payables JER S & RAEAL 92,658 82,439
Others EHAth 27 27
Total wEr 430,478 593,971

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2022, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
was US$182,453,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, contract liabilities
of US$192,588,000 (2022: US$182,453,000) at the beginning
of the year were recognised as revenue. The decrease in
contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
sale of semiconductor products.

His B RREEM,. RERARER

RHEE,

R-TE-_—_F—H—H, AHBEEERR
{8/5182,453,0003% 7T

HE-_ZT-_=-F+-_A=+—HLHF
g, F4)192,588,000FT( — T - —
. 182,453,000 70 | WAL B BEWE
RBBA. RZEZ=FNAEHNAER
LPEFERRREEEFERBEREHEN
EFEEERTORLD
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31 December 2023
—EC=F+-A=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. ;T ERITER
2023
—E-=
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$’000
BRRFIE(%) 21 FEx
Current &
Current portion of long-term K EJIR1TE Z A BN ER
bank loans — secured 1 - BHEIF 1.20 - 5.50 2024 193,035
1.20%5.50 —E-MEF
Total — current FEE ) 193,035
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans BEMIBITER 1.20 - 5.50 2025-2033 1,786,526
1208550 —“E-_HF-—ZT==
Unsecured bank loans EIKIRIRITE K 2.00 2025-2034 120,000
—ECRF-ZF=NF
Total — non-current et - IEME 1,906,526
Total BET 2,099,561
2022
—E-F
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$'000
BEFIE (%) ZI|ER FET
Current &
Bank loans — unsecured HITER - mEH 0.55-5.50 2023 314,039
0.55%25.50 ZEC=AF
Current portion of long-term & 848 17 & k&9 BN H8
bank loans — secured 1 - BEMA 1.20-6.30 2023 112,717
1.20%6.30 —ZEC=F
Total — current HET - RED 426,756
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans BIEPIRITER 1.20-6.63 2024-2030 1,451,580
12058663 —ZE-_NFE-_E=FF
Unsecured bank loans EIRRITER 2.00 2024-2030 30,000
200 “ENFE-ZT=FF
Total — non-current wWEt - IERB 1,481,580
Total et 1,908,336
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

31 December 2023
—EC=F+-A=+—H

B RS ¥R R B

26. sHERITRER( & )

2023 2022
—E—-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FET
Analysed into: baR)iv=F

Bank loans repayable: EERRITER.
Within one year —FRN 193,035 426,756
In the second year BF 266,809 183,281

In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFERF
(BEEEMRT) 989,585 827,919
After five years hFE 650,132 470,380
Total et 2,099,561 1,908,336

Except for bank loans of US$446,551,000 (2022:
US$132,562,000) which are denominated in RMB, all
borrowings are dominated in United States dollars.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain of the Group’s
bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group's assets

with carrying values as follows:

B 446,551,000F0( —_ T = = F .
132,562,000 70 )RR TEFRUAARE
sHESN, FrBEFEAETTAHE,

R =FR-_F-__F+=-A=+
— B, NEENETRITERHEFR
EEMEEEER, EENEEADN

T

2023 2022

—E-=F TE-F

Notes US$’000 US$'000

Mz Ex FET

Property, plant and equipment Y. WE KEE 13 1,487,211 1,808,095
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 44,319 50,231
Properties under development BERPYIE 19 86,565 88,033
Total 45t 1,618,095 1,941,359
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HESE

2023 2022

—E—-= —E-F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FEx FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BRERAE 19,348 17,813
Additions NE 7,862 6,394
Accretion of interest F) B0 1,068 880
Payments (BN (5,674) (4,144)
Exchange realignment & H % (399) (1,595)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—HB®HEREE 22,205 19,348
The maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2023 HEAER=ZE=-_=F+=-A=+—H

is as follows: R EIERE RN

2023 2022

—E-=F B F

US$’ 000 US$’000

ES FET

Within one year —FR 3,981 5,458
In the second year EF 2,554 2,615
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEERT(REEEMT) 7,663 5,059
After five years hFE 12,771 10,119
Total undiscounted lease liabilities AENIRFHE B ERE 26,969 23,251
Discount amount ALIREE (4,764) (3,903)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEaBENRIRE 22,205 19,348
Current portion BERER 5> 3,076 4,704
Non-current portion FEENEAEL 19,129 14,644
2023 2022

—EBE-=F —E-CF

US$’ 000 US$’000

ES FET

Analysed into: X =%

Within one year —FR 3,076 4,704
In the second year F_F 1,742 2,014
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FIEERT(BIEERMT) 5,755 3,622
After five years HFE 11,632 9,008

Total present value of lease liabilities HEBBNRIRE 22,205 19,348
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31 December 2023
F+=A=+

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

FEBLTE

B RS ¥R R B

FRREHARBIEENEHNT.

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBE
Difference of
Fair value Fair value fixed assets
gains on gainon between  Right-of-
financial ~ aninvestment  Withholding accounting use
investments property tax  and tax basis assets Total
SRREN  REVEN BTEEN kAR
NHENRE  ATEKE M 8%8 EE &t
US§000 US$000 US§000 US§000  US$000  USH000
TET TET TET TEr  FEr TEn
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%t-A=t-8H 4528 626 25,735 - - 30889
Effect of adoption of amendmentsto A (BRI B A S E8IE
HKAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) 12%R9572( fiizE2.2(c)) - - - - 2,271 2,271
At 1 January 2022 (restated) W-E-—%—F—H
(&5 ) 4528 626 25,735 - 2271 33,160
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRIE /(5T A JBHNE
profit or loss during the year RERIE(Fir3z10)
(note 10) - 12 15,533 3,566 376 19,487
Deferred tax charged to other FRiIALMhZARENEL
comprehensive income during #A
the year (4,528) - - - - (4,528)
Exchange realignment A - (48) - 55 (223) (216)
Gross deferred tax liabilities as at “EZZFtZR=T-HE
31 December 2022 (restated) EHIERELS 457 - 590 41,268 3,621 2424 47,903
At 31 December 2022 RZE_ZF+-A=t—H - 590 41268 3,621 - 45479
Effect of adoption of amendments to ~ RAVTIERT B A G ERF
HKAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) 12ROFE(ME2.2(c)) - - - - 2,424 2,424
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZFZ=4F-A-H
(BE5) - 590 41,268 3,621 2,424 47,903
Deferred tax charged to profit or ERMBERNELTE
loss during the year (note 10) (MiEE10) - 16 (11,676) (565) 461 (11764)
Deferred tax charged FRMEEM2ARENEL
to other comprehensive i
income during the year 10,749 - - - - 10,749
Exchange realignment E)ﬁﬂ% (335) (10) - (65) (42) (452)
Gross deferred tax liabilities as at \ZEZ=F+ZA=1-H
31 December 2023 EEHER GRS 10,414 596 29,592 2,991 2843 46436

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends REFERAPR AT HZEFR
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese eSS N\FE— A —HEELNETR
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1 January o R B IR B0 N FEFO R . P B A
2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a EHNFITEE B R E R E] AN
tax treaty between Chinese Mainland and the jurisdiction of the T, AJALEAREATEMRE,
foreign investors.
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the Group’s
investments in associates where the Group is able to control
the timing of remittance or other realisation and where
remittance or realisation is not probable in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate temporary differences relating to
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities arising on investments in
associates is US$86,825,000 (2022: US$77,595,000).

L*R IE\ ( =] )

AR A a) E IR R R A BB I 4 B A T
Frisfie R,

HAREE ARG AR B R RRIRED

PR IA A T N R, AKLR
A RRRERSEROEE TR, KE

B TeRESRERRELERIE, B
Eﬁ#ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ&éﬁ?im*ﬁﬁw_uﬁ
HEEZ TR ERE%586,825,0003%
T ZZTE =%, 77,595,000 7T )

Deferred tax assets EIEFIEEE
Write-down
of inventories Fair value
and loss on
impairment of Lease financial ~ Government
receivables Accruals  Liabilitiess investments grants Total
FEHRR RRIRER
EfFERE EHBR HEERE LTEER B8 @it
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TE TET TET TE
As at 31 December 2021 At SR s
=+-A 2,534 5,698 401 - - 8,633
Effect of adoption of amendmentsto ~ FMEE B EEHE
HKAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) AIE 125 RS 2 I
‘52 2(c)) - - 2,211 - - 2,271
At 1 January 2022 (restated) N_E-_—&#—F—H
( ET ) 2,534 5,698 2,672 - - 10,904
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss S zF ABRAIELR:
during the year (note 10) (restated) B ( FitzE10 ) £ &5 ) 571 1469 400 - 4,607 7,047
Deferred tax charged FRMEEMPENR
to other comprehensive MEEHE
income during the year - - - 3,820 - 3,820
Exchange realignment [EX A% (241) (702) (257) 59 70 (1,07)
Gross deferred tax S ::ﬁ' A=
assets as at 31 December 2022and ~ +—HR-Z-=%
1 January 2023 (restated) —R-H EURIES
ERB(RE)|) 2,864 6,465 2,815 3879 4,677 20,700
At 31 December 2022 RIB-ZF4-A
=f-H 2,864 6,465 391 3,879 4677 18,276
Effect of adoption of amendmentsto ST (BRI BB S E
HKAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) BIE 1250 B
5522(0)) - - 2424 - - 2424
At 1 January 2023 (restated) \_ZZ=E-A-A
(BE7) 2,864 6,465 2,815 3,879 4,677 20,700
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit FREFA /(18 Bz
or loss during the year (note 10) FIBRIERA( FE10) 571 (1,715) 488 - (250) (906)
Deferred tax charged FRNALMZEYE
to other comprehensive MEEHE
income during the year - - - (3,879) - (3,879)
Exchange realignment EPLEH% (45) (139) (49) - (80) (313)
Gross deferred tax assets as at RZEZ=F+-A
31 December 2023 = BEHEA
EfR 3,390 4611 3,254 4,347 15,602
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.

31 December 2023

+

28.

A=+

B RS ¥R R B

.

EAEBIA( 4 )

HR2JER, ETELCHAEENE
BEEAEMBIRAKRFEE, AT ABE

S

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the ’Txiﬁi H A AR BIEERRASEREST
Group for financial reporting purposes: AT
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EH FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in ? B ISR R MR R IR IE B IR
the consolidated statement of financial BEFRE
position - 14,066
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RE IR R ERRIRIETIA
the consolidated statement of financial ’51 L F R
position 30,834 41,268

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to
improbable future taxable profits in respect of the following
items:

VAT I B B AR RS K AT BE2E A FE AR T 4
A I AR TR IR B E -

2023 2022

—E_-= —E-F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FEx FET

Unused tax losses REABIEEE 36,538 29,540
Deductible temporary differences AIHRE R A B 20,554 17,876
Total wEt 57,092 47,416

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
US$24,916,000 (2022: US$22,576,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Chinese Mainland of US$11,622,000 (2022:
US$6,964,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be recognised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the temporary differences as it is not considered probable that
the above items can be recognised.

AREBEEFEEELENKREEE A
24,916,000% 0( — & = =
22,576,000%75) ‘JMEHE%EE%FEEEE
B RRINRRERE R ANEETR
R B A E AR TEE 1B 11,622,0003%
T —ZF = —4. 6,964,000%7T ), HH
—ERFARE IJHHLMR%%%I)EH%%R@%IJ

HREEREEERBEERZER
FAE, BANKAIEEH AT A A B
AR SHA] T HER MR IAE R, I EL
ZEERERDEERAEE,

MR R A LA B AN KA RE1S B #ERR,
BB LR EREARLCHAEE,
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29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BT BY

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 37,714 66,837
Additions NE 18,976 58,237

Released to offsetting research and A DA S5 25 R AR
development costs (6,408) (31,368)
Released to offset finance costs B AR S B 75 B R (3,015) (11,100)
Offset with long term assets HIHREEE (11,632) (38,414)
Exchange realignment M 5, B (618) (6,478)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 35,017 37,714

The Group received government funding for several
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and

development of advanced technologies.

AEENZ EBTE 8E B R EBUA
BNETEY, RFHBZINMEL

HERM o
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31 December 2023

B RS ¥R R B

F+=A=+
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
2023 2022
—E-=E TETF
US$’000 US$'000
Ep FET
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE .
1,716,588,694 (2022: 1,306,836,740) 1,716,588,694 % — & =~ .
ordinary shares 1,306,836,740% )& i@ 4,933,559 1,994,462
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as VNI NS B L AU (N
follows:
Number of Amount of
shares in issue  share capital
ERITROEE BAEEE
000 US$’ 000
F AR FEx
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_F—H—H 1,301,192 1,986,152
Share options exercised (note (a)) TTEERE( H3E@) ) 5,645 8,310
At 31 December 2022 and RIZEZZF+ZA=+—HRK
1 January 2023 —E-=F—H—H 1,306,837 1,994,462
Share options exercised (note (a)) Tﬂiﬁ%ﬂxﬁé (B3¥(a)) 2,002 5,126
Shares issued (note (b)) BEITIRM ( MizEb) ) 407,750 2,933,971
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A=+—H 1,716,589 4,933,559
Notes: Hia.
(a) The subscription rights attaching to nil (2022: 4,738,000) (a) BE-Z—AFERE, ZH( ===

share options under the 2015 Options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$6.912 per share (2022: HK$6.912 per
share), resulting in the issue of nil (2022: 4,738,000) shares
for a total cash consideration of nil (2022: US$4,173,000). An
amount of US$ nil (2022: US$1,803,000) was transferred from the
share option reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share
options.

The subscription rights attaching to 2,002,000 (2022: 907,000)
share options under the 2018 Options were exercised at the
subscription prices of HK$15.056 and HK$17.952 per share
(2022: HK$15.056 and HK$17.952), resulting in the issue of
2,002,000 (2022: 907,000) shares for a total cash consideration
of US$3,878,000 (2022: US$1,768,000). An amount of
US$1,248,000 (2022: US$566,000) was transferred from the
share option reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share
options.

On 7 August 2023, the Company became listed on the SSE
STAR Market. By way of the share issue, 407,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were subscribed with gross proceeds
of RMB21,203 million (equivalent to US$2,974 million). After
deducting issuance costs including underwriting fees and other
issuance costs, the net proceeds were RMB20,921 million
(equivalent to US$2,934 million), which resulted in an increase of
RMB20,921 million (equivalent to US$2,934 million) in the share
capital of ordinary shares.

T4 . 4,738,00017 )EEBRIEMT 2 R
BECKAEESKR6I12ETI T
— . Bi6.912/8 T )17, 3
BT T —F. 4,738, oooﬂﬁ)
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4,173,000% 7T ), BERETEE, T
Z7t( _7__$. 1,803,000 7T )7k
EE REREREERERA,

BIE=—T— \FHEK#E, 2,002,000
( fz:—iz 907,00017 ) B A& A B 75

RERCEREEESR15.0568T
DA&17.952}§7_E( —EF - —F. 15.056
WIT K& 17.952% 7T V111, SIEETT
2,002,000/ ( ZZF==4. 907,000
Hx JWetn, #2384 (E4A3,878,000% T

—ZT - 4. 1,768,000 ), B
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. 566,000% 7T )FIALD RIERERE
BT,
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TC(HHER2974BEETT ), LMK
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A INAR20,921BETT( HER
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme includes two batches, each of which
was effective on 4 September 2015 (the “2015 Options”) and
on 24 December 2018 (the “2018 Options”), respectively.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's
directors, including a non-executive director, an executive
director and other employees of the Group. The share options,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 7 years from the respective effective dates.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of two to five years and ends on a date which is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

NABIRE —EBRETE ([ &%
), BEEAEASEIENEREME
Bz A BB HEERHE R ER,
ZErEln AW, 82K 2 —H
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T-NF+_AZF+WA([ ZT—N\F
FEARKE | ) EW, ZtElo e ERSH
ERRARAES(BE—RIIENTE
. —EBRTES I RAKEEMES,
BRIESHWEUERIEE], ZEBRER A
BN A BIRRET 7 FAE .

REF AT AR IR FZ AT B 2 RAT{E BB AR 4
HBETHBBBAZEERETEREARR
TR BITRMD Z10%, RER+ 1
AHIRE, ZFIESHFAERSHERE
BRI T 2 IS E TEBIBA
RNEUEAFRHRE BTN 2 1%, E—F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does
not have a past practice of cash settlement for these share
options. The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-
settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

2015 Options
The following 2015 Options were outstanding during the year:

BRERTEI(&)

TAEBEURGHEE, AEBBRELE
MR HEEZEBRE, ~EESZ
EEREaREEEIARK,

AN IEMT A SR A AR AR
RIERARRRHRER,

—E-AFEBERE
FRN, ATERESABE-_ZS—R2F
A T(E .

2022
- —F

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
HK$ per share ‘000
IR I9ITEE BRRESR
BRET T
At 1 January n—H—H 6.912 4,738
Exercised during the year FRITE 6.912 (4,738)
At 31 December Wt+=ZA=+—AH - -

2018 Options
The following 2018 Options were outstanding during the year:

—E-N\FRERE
FA, ATBERERARE-Z—/\F
FEREETT(E

2023 2022
—E-=F TE- 4

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HKS  of options  price HK$  of options
per share ’000 per share ‘000

hnFEFEg IS
TFEE BREZEA IE(E  BREHR
BRER T4 BRAETT Tt
At 1 January Rn—A—H 15.318 23,438 15.317 24,963
Exercised during the year FRITE 15.184 (2,002) 15.244 (907)
Forfeited during the year FRRUL 16.382 (14) 15.403 (618)

At 31 December Hnt+—-—A=+—8H 15.329

21,422 15.318 23,438
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. IBIRAERHEI( & )
2018 Options (Continued) —E-N\FRREE)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the 2018 Options RBERRZF—\FEREETHR
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as IR T TR (B RATEEAA T
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Number of Number of
options options  Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE ISR TEE* 1758
’000 '000  HKS per share
T3 T BRET
5,883 6,523 15.056 24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
—ECEF+ZAZ+HAE=E-AF+=-A=+=H
3,872 4512 15.056 24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
T+ -_A-tmWEE-"ZE-AFf+-A-+=AH
8,788 9,429 15.056 24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
- —F+-A-+WAE-ZE-RFt+-A-+=H
925 925 15.056 24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
=T AZTHOAEE RS T AZ+=H
63 62 18.400 29 March 2021 to 28 March 2026
- —F=f-t+hhBEE-_ZE-E=A=-1+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2022 to 28 March 2026
R CF=AZTAREZZZRF=AZ1+NHR
125 125 18.400 29 March 2023 to 28 March 2026
—=FZA-t+hRE-Z-F=A-1+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2024 to 28 March 2026
—ECMFE=A-thAE-_Z-_XF=A=+N\A
211 256 17.952 23 December 2021 to 22 December 2026
B+ -A-+=ZRE-T-AFt+-A=-+=H
594 639 17.952 23 December 2022 to 22 December 2026
TR YA+ =HAEEAFt+tZA=1+=H
636 642 17.952 23 December 2023 to 22 December 2026
=F+ZAZ+=AEZT=X"F+-A=+=H
75 75 17.952 23 December 2024 to 22 December 2026
—E-NF+ A+ =ZRE-T-AFt+-A=-+=H
21,422 23,438
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * WER TR ATR 7T, FARE]Z
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in RAKBEEMIBLINE, BIERES 7TE

the Company'’s share capital. (B TR,
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2018 Options (Continued)
The Group recognised a share option expense of the 2018
Options of US$853,000 (2022: US$1,226,000) during the year.

The 2,002,000 (2022: 907,000) share options exercised
under the 2018 Options during the year, resulting in the
issue of 2,002,000 (2022: 907,000) ordinary shares of the
Company for a total cash consideration of US$3,878,000
(2022: US$1,768,000). An amount of US$1,248,000 (2022:
US$566,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to
share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as further
detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
21,422,000 2018 Options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 21,422,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of US$55,522,000 (including US$13,506,000
transferred from the share option reserve to share capital).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 21,144,481 2018 Options outstanding, which
represented approximately 1.23% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 283 to
284 of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of the PRC
subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the applicable
accounting rules and regulations in the PRC, are available
for distribution in the form of cash dividends to the Company
after the PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities;
(2) provided for losses in previous years; and (3) made
appropriations to the statutory reserve funds. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
funds until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital.
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—E-)\FRREE)
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D T 4. 907,0001n )FEMEE
7718, SIBARRIE172,002,0008%( =
T —4F. 907,000 ) EBE®K, BI7
+HR{E53,878,000F T T - —4F.
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HEHBERERESREERA,
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55,522,000 70 ( BIiERERERFEE
B =R ZANA)13,506,0003 7T o
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BATSERARMIEE T

33. LEASES

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to Huali
Micro, under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also require
the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was US$14,259,000
(31 December 2022: US$14,358,000), details of which are

included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

33. HE

EREHEA
AEBRE-EEEHEREE, BHEE
EWE(ME14)BATFENM, B
B0, LKA — MR IR T R
BARKEERT AR EHHESHEED
B, AEERFRERANHEERAR
14,259,000 L( —E-—F+-_A=
+—H. 14,358,000% 7T ), EFEFEHIR
B IS RER M55,

R =ZFR T -_—F+_A=+
— B, REERBETAIBEEERLIR
R W ER MR EHEE MK
.

2023 2022

—EC-=E —E_F

US$’ 000 US$'000

Ep FET

Within one year —FR 13,884 14,641
After one year but within two years —FRBERRERN 13,884 14,641
After two years but within three years MEZRBR=ZFN 13,884 14,641
After three years but within four years —FRERTOFEA 13,884 14,641
After four years but within five years NEFEZBERAEFA 13,884 14,641
More than five years HBiERF 17,097 32,636
Total wEt 86,517 105,841

As lessee

The Group has various lease contracts for land use rights,
offices and dormitory properties used in its operation. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 42 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of offices and dormitory properties generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased

assets outside the Group.

ERABAA
AEBEHERANEEBKEEN T HER
E\%“*&@%%¥m S THEA
4, BIRAMER —RIERZAREER
EAEE T, fﬂﬁﬁ)m’%z 504, iR
BRELIHEENER, BTEHEET
HEHMEO%“* B &M T E

BNF2E20F, — K5, A&E
$ﬂﬂ$%EM%AiE%&ﬁﬁﬁ%
BE,
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33. LEASES (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RIS BP IR AR MY EE

33. HE( &)

EREBEAE)
(a) EREEENREERE

Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and HFAREEENTEEBEEHENE
lease liabilities is set out in notes 15 and 27, respectively, BB D RIE N B HRRMTE15 %
to the financial statements. 275
(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (b) REZFERNEELEFAEN
leases are as follows: T
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EY FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,068 880
Depreciation charge of right-of-use TREEENERX
assets 6,427 5,842
Expense relating to short-term leases LG HAEHRENMX 2,383 2,625
Total amount recognised in profit RERERNASHE
or loss 9,878 9,347
(c) Total cash outflows for leases and non-cash additions to (c) HERSRDBEUARGERHEEE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in RSB ENIFRESRNERIBR
note 39 to the financial statements. FIFEIOA R FE
34. COMMITMENTS 34. i
The Group had the following contractual commitments at the REERMEARE AT ELEE.
end of the reporting period:
2023 2022
—EB-=H B —
US$’ 000 US$'000
ES FZET
Contracted, but not provided for: E2ETA), (BRERE.
Property, plant and equipment Y. B KEE 1,258,232 284,304
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. BBEE A X 7 R AEBR
BALANCES
(a) Name and relationship (a) BEBERBER
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RAHE 5 &8 BEAEBHBR

Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
ENEERETFAT

— Hua Hong International Inc. (“Huahong International”) 20.25% shareholder of the Company

- T EIFRARAE([ZFETERR |) FiA%20.25% < AR AR

- Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd. ("Huahong Subsidiary of Huahong Group
Zealcore”)

- EEE TR AR AR T ) FEIEREF AT

— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. (*Hongri”) Subsidiary of Huahong Group

- LB EEREFERAG(TH ) EHEET A

— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development Subsidiary of Huahong Group
Center (“ICRD”)*

- DBSERERIFEAO(] EREEHE ) FAEEFRA]

— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (“Jitong”) Subsidiary of Huahong Group

- EEEMFHBE R ERROBRATN #HE ) EH EE T RE

— Huali Micro Subsidiary of Huahong Group

- EAW FEAEEFRA

SAIL and its subsidiaries
EEBANREFAT

— Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (“SAIL") Holding company of Sino-Alliance International
Ltd.
- LBEFIEERR AT _LEHM ) Sino-Alliance International Ltd. B)#2Ef% A &)
- Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”) 11.01% shareholder of the Company
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd.( [ SAIL International |) R 11.01% 2 KR BIIRE
Huahong Technology Development Associate of the Group
ENREERE REERE R A
- Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Real Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Estate”) Development
- LBENBEBRAG([FEMEE ) EIREERT AR

— Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Huajin”) Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
- DBERYEETEARAE( HR ) FEA R ERTF AT

*  ICRD, a subsidiary of Huahong Group is no longer a related * ENEETFLREKEENEE —F =
party to the Group since 1 January 2023. ZFE—H—HET AR EE
Fo
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(b) Related party transactions

371

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-A=+—H

(b)

The Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

B RS ¥R R B

35. Bk S X 5 R AEER( & )

BELRZ
AEERFRNC LR TETIAT
BEARS:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Ep FET
Sales of goods to related parties MR B & & m( k() )
(note (i)
Huahong Zealcore? B e 18,495 9,711
Hongri# L=k - 4,394
ICRD* SRR E R R 2,083 3,342
Purchases of goods from related BB T E S EE) )
parties (note (ii))
Hongri* e 18,433 18,422
Huahong Zealcore? HE T R 801 825
Jitong FTim 32 20
Huali Micro =Pl - 69
Purchases of intangible assets from & BB 5 88 8 B2 E 2 ( K wE(iii) )
a related party (note (iii))
Huali Micro =yl 17,112 -
Rental income from a related party 2R E BB 5 9B S WA FIEE(v) )
(note (iv))
Huali Micro* =Pl 13,985 14,254
Service fees charged by related A 7 R A AR TS B ( B eE(v) )
parties (note (v))
Huajin® iR 567 400
Interest expense charged by a RAsE 7 W R A F1 B s
related party (notes (vi) and (vii)) ( BERE(vi) B (vii) )
Huahong Real Estate E B 709 714
Expense paid on behalf of a related X EAEE S AR ( B sE(vi) )
party (note (vi))
Huali Micro =L 29,026 32,728

# The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

BB SIER ETRAIE T

DIAZFT SR ETER 5o
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B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2023
—Z-=%t-A=t—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

Note (i) The sales of goods to related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

Note (ii) The purchases of goods and intangible assets from
related parties were made according to the prices and
terms offered by the related parties.

Note (iii) The purchases of intangible assets from a related party
were made according to the prices and terms offered
by the related party.

Note (iv) The rental income received from a related party was
based on the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

Note (v) The service fees and interest expense charged by
related parties were based on the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

Note (vi) The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Note (vii) The Group entered into leases in respect of certain
dormitory properties from Huahong Real Estate. The
amount of rent payable by the Group under the leases
is US$2,5622,000 per year. At 31 December 2023,
the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were US$18,083,000 (31 December 2022:
US$12,229,000) and US$20,790,000 (31 December
2022: US$14,772,000), respectively.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED TS 88HR AR » 2023 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

35. Bk S X 5 R AEER( & )

(b) BBLIXZ (&)

Bt ()

B2 (i)

Baz i)

et (iv)

Btaz(v)

Kzt (vi)

iz vii)

TG 77 1 5 A 1 TS AR R A
AT 15 7 19 (B 18 K AR 1E
o

B RI% 5 BB i B in KAETD &
ETIIRIZ BB T HE R e (B 1K
1RECTEL

E BB 7 i B AT B E IR
FAH 77 12 (i (B 18 R AR E
o

KB BIH 7 I8 2 WA TIIR IR
LR T 1 7 AV IETE RARFH
o

RIS ERF LG5 B 77
TRIZEBTHE Ty 177 E OB TR R A%
R

BB 77 55 17 89 B 5 3 T At
8, RELESEE,

REFGEEITEZHER
ETHEEYERIT B, &
FEERBEETEMHE
BEED 622000 T, B
ZEFAELEERTERE
#4584 51 518,083,000
T ZFE=Z=ZF+ /A=
—H. 12,229,000 T )
20,790,000% 0 ( —F=—4F
+=H=+—H: 14,772,000
ER
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. B AR B REER( & )
BALANCES (continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) BT ZRMKRE BT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
US$’000 US$'000
Ep F=
Amounts due from related parties ek BB 5 5RIE
Huali Micro = H 6,933 10,996
Huahong Zealcore AT B 4,286 1,457
ICRD SR BRI - 553
Total #Et 11,219 13,006
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< RS 77 SRR
Huali Micro eyl 11,304 3,115
Hongri iTH 2,126 2,613
Huajin Eac 221 53
Huahong Zealcore B 190 211
Jitong il 35 28
ICRD SRR BRI - 76
Total “sEt 13,876 6,096
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) XEEXTEEBEASNHE
Group
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EpH F=x
Short term employee benefits HIR ERA 5,744 5,622
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B 183 103
Equity-settled share option expense Atz &5 E A BEARAER 113 419
Total compensation paid to key IRNTEEEEABNINSERE
management personnel 6,040 6,144

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEEW o E - IEEN I BER
note 8 to the financial statements. KMIE8,
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. HEFIESTHERMT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial SEeRTENREHRNETDAERN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as ™.
follows:
Financial assets — at amortised cost THEE - HRBER
2023 2022
—E-= T _F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FET
Trade and notes receivables = A E O EYS T ES 278,669 291,856
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERFRIE. Eith el zkiE
other receivables and other assets LMEMEENSREE
(note 22) ( F¥zE22) 11,632 23,577
Due from related parties JiE L BBt 75 SRR 11,219 13,006
Restricted and time deposits B4 M E HITE R 32,088 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 5,585,181 2,008,765
Total a5 5,918,789 2,338,246
Financial assets — at fair value through other comprehensive TEEE - B TFEFAEMEE K
income without recycling to profit or loss ( TEEHE ARz )
2023 2022
—E-=F TE-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
ES FET
Equity investments designated at fair BE AR AT EET AR MEERE
value through other comprehensive HfR iR &
income 270,506 178,632
Financial liabilities — at amortised cost DEBE - Bt
2023 2022
—E-=E TE- 4
US$’ 000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade payables B SIENRIA 235,410 236,999
Financial liabilities included in other ST AR RN FIEREHERL
payables and accruals (note 25) SR E( 25 ) 252,963 318,944
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRTTER 2,099,561 1,908,336
Due to related parties JFE <t BB 5 BB 13,876 6,096

Total A&t 2,601,810 2,470,375
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ¥R R B

31 December 2023
—E-=f+=-A=+—H

7. eI ENATFERLATERE
A

AEESRTA(TEREREERATE
REMHENER TR WEEERAFE

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: T
Carrying amounts Fair values
IRMEE ANEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= B —=EB-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
EYH FET EY F=E7T
Financial assets SHEE
Equity investments designated EEREATE
at fair value through other FTAEMEE
comprehensive income Wasa AR iR & 270,506 178,632 270,506 178,632
Financial liabilities = =N
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T EIRTTE K 1,906,526 1,481,580 1,911,206 1,537,685

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted and time deposits, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to related
parties and the current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings and lease liabilities approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors twice a year for interim
and annual financial reporting.

EEECHERSRRNEEFED. ER
BLREMER. EHRBGHRARERSE
B AIABNRENSREE. HME
WA, B5RINFIA. FTARMER
RELEHEANSBAR. RS
S RARSE 7 A KAt BIRITIE R R E
BENRDHEOOAFEEEKREER
#, TERARZEFTAGREHNE
Ho

AEBEBETAMBEESENWFI R
AEEERTAAFEFENERRELRE
Fro M MERAMBRERSE. NE
BEAH, BHBEHAIMERTANE
BEPIBEEHETERNERZHAK
B, MERAMKBEEZRILE, HE
BRENMRBESEEFIBMA, N
TR R FEMF AR,
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37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023
were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been
estimated using the market approach. If there is a recent
deal regarding the unlisted investments, the fair values are
estimated based on the dealing price. If there is no such deal
to be referenced, the directors will determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as price to book value (“P/B") multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the
enterprise value of the comparable company by net assets.
The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding net assets of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

7. TRMIT AN A FERATERE

RE)

TREENRABENAFERKENER
R RS ( MIFREAsERIE )R AR
BMABTANSREIIK, Bt FET
EAA T AR BRRR

STRBRITERAEREBE D EH A FETD
FREAEARUFEH. E8RER KT
%U@@@MIEMEﬁﬂt%ﬁﬁ@
REBEREMAAHE, AEEFHER

=p ﬁ77i_¢+ A=+—HBEH
BE R BRITEFTNIERD LS TE
ARBEMERN A TFEZBLTEX,

BEARZAFETAEMEEWEHIIE
EIRAEREZ AFERAMSEMN
H, MBEAKRZHBERLTIRE,
NFEEBDERZZEGHE, ML EZ
ERGAHELE, i%%ﬂﬁﬁ% b
B, HENREK W?me?imQT
(Ff7), BMEEENSTELRR
HE ‘*MFWF% Wm%$Fm
%TjﬁﬁoﬁfﬁﬁﬁTémf
RICEREBEERUNFEEMS, X5
LB R IRE N B EE B R AR IR
FHERZT AR, MRESEAR
FLEMBRAKRENHREFEENTER
TE, EFRE, T AREGYBMRAE
KB TP E £ B ET A FE A KA
AHMEEUENAFEEREESES
B, MRmEHRNEERARE,
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value

31 December 2023

37. ERMTAENAFERAFEE

R(E)

DHERER
TRERNASESRTANATFERE
A%

BATE BN BEE
—E-=F+=A=+-8

Fair value measurement using

AFPESBRANTEE

Quoted Quoted Quoted
prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets
WEEBWE KREERWmE KNEEBmE
NHHHE WHEHRE HNHEHRE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 E28R EIW et
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FTER S FErx FErx
Equity investments designated EEREATE
at fair value through other FFAEMEE
comprehensive income W a Rk iR & 2,429 265,128 2,949 270,506
31 December 2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
DA ERAUTEE
Quoted Quoted Quoted
prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets
WERTS KERTE  NERmS
HHSME HNMEHRE MNmSWE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF EPF E3R wast
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated EEABEATE
at fair value through other FTAEMEE
comprehensive income W r AR iR & 2,442 - 176,190 178,632
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31 December 2023

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2022:Nil).

During the year 2023, there was a transfer from Level 3 to
Level 2 for an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a carrying amount
of US$265,128,000 as at 31 December 2023 because there
was a recent dealing price to be referenced and the significant
inputs used in the fair value measurements were observable.

During the year 2022, there was a transfer from Level 2 to
Level 3 for an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a carrying amount
of US$2,236,000 as at 31 December 2022 because there was
no recent dealing price to be referenced and the significant
inputs used in the fair value measurements were unobservable.

7. eI ENATFERLATERE

RE)

DR EBR(E)

B FlEGTER 2 HEE(E)
RBEHR, AEENBRBERARF
BERzENER,

RER, BIREF2RNTEFEZR
WEEBB( T _—4F. &)

RZZEZ=ZFRN, RZT-_=F+=A
=+—H, BRME{AEA265,128,000%FTH)
BEAEBEAFEFTAEMEE YA
BIGEBEIREAF2N, AAWER
M BEMHE2E, BAFESEMA
BEREABEATAIESR,

RZZEZ—FRAN, RZE-__F+=A
=+—H, BRHE{EA2,236,000% T8
TE AR AT EFAEM 2R IR E
WEBB2REAEIN, AT ETH
THEAH2E, BATFEAEFAE
R ABIE BT ATEE,
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

31 Dec

—EC=FA—

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group's financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was performed using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. Below is a summary of the valuation technique

used and the key inputs to the valuation:

ember 2023
A=+—H

7. eMIAMNATER

RE)

DHERR(HE)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ¥R R B

DNHEE

AEBEAFEFABENEREEDN
BAMATEAENER T _=F K=
T _F+-A=+t—BHNEXTAEH
R ABIE( B3R EL. TXRAEE
PR ERN R E R ABEME.

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
EXFABE AHEHBAYE
fEE R BAHE EE ZHRE
Equity investments designated  JEEARATFEZTA  Valuation multiples  Average P/B multiple 2022: 1.3x-2.7x 5% (2022: 5%)
at fair value through other Hihzmkam of peers increase/decrease
comprehensive income BAHE would result in
increase/decrease
in fair value by 5%
(2022: 5%)
1G] FZFHmERE ZECCF 1327x 5%(ZFZZF. 5%)

Average P/S multiple

of peers

AE TR

Discount for illiquidity

B RBERITEE

2023: 4.5x-11.9x
2022: 3.8x-8.5x

TETZE, 45x-11.9x
“E-F. 38x85x

2023: 20%-30%
2022: 20%-30%

TETZF. 20%-30%
“ETF, 20%-30%

MEN/ RO BER
NTEEN/ RD5%
(ZBZZ%. 5%)
5% (2022: 5%)
increase/decrease
would result in
increase/decrease

in fair value by 5%
(2022: 5%)

5% ZEZZF. 5%)
#iEm /B HEH
NTEEN/ FL5%
(ZBZZ%. 5%)

5% (2022: 5%)
increase/decrease
would result in
decreasefincrease

in fair value by 5%
(2022: 5%)

5% ZFZZ%. 5%)
g,/ RO E R
RNVHERD /EM5%
(ZZZZF. 5%)
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The movements in financial assets categorised into Level 3
during the year are as follows:

37. ERMT AN FERAFERE
R(E)

ATEBR H)
ERHEREMNLREERBIT .

Equity investments
designated at fair
value through other

comprehensive

income

EERBRAFETA

Hih2EKREH

IREERE

US$’000

FERT

At 1 January 2022 RZE__F—-H—H 241,242

Transfer from level 2 SEFFEYN 2,236
Total losses recognised in other REMEM SRR EIE85E

comprehensive income (48,629)

Exchange realignment & H (18,659)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 J‘E" ES __¢+ A=+—HxkK

—E-=F—H—H 176,190

Transfer to level 2 EELIEYN (174,170)
Total losses recognised in other REAM 2 EW S ERNEEERE

comprehensive income 968

Exchange realignment i 5, (39)

As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=RA=+—H 2,949
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. I EREEEERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
recognised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2023, if the interest rates had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year would have been US$17,524,463
lower/higher (31 December 2022: US$14,546,223), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.

AEENTIZSRTABRRITENR
RehERER, 2FeRMTANTE
ReIRAEENEEREES. 1%
BEZRERAHLAEESMEMLSA
BERAE, WEHNEMEYFIEIA
KB 5 R AR IR,

Z’S%@i%ﬁlﬂﬁﬁéiﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ’*%ﬂ
EEpe. INERR. EER &/}lb@]é
THEE, B %é\*ﬁ.ﬂ‘&ﬁz’aﬁ BRI
SRRMBE, BRBERMMN T,

FEER
AEBERETSHEZHNEE, T8
HEAREBE BN R BRITEKEH,
REBNBRASEREE MM EE
BHEAEEN B,

R-ZFE-_=ZF+=-A=+—H, WA=
BN A 10052, MATEEMES
T, iﬁqmnjmﬂﬁqﬂéw‘m
17,524,463%T( —E-—F+-A=
+—H. 14,546,223%7T ), IHEEER
P ENFIRIRITE SR F S5 g sk

Lo
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MKAMEEEERBEKR(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk ShEE R B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. These AEBEEZSINERK, ZERKE
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant HEEETRAMELHEE AR
subsidiary operating in Chinese Mainland in US$ other than ETHETNES, MIAFEUEINGEEE
the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the ANREEHEIT, RER, NEBMIELSE
year, approximately 22% (2022: 27%) of the Group’s sales FR#22%( —ZE =8, 27% )JhLAETT
were denominated in currencies other than the functional EEM T AT E I N B
currency of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 53% (2022: B, EFER, $HEKRAD53%( —F
71%) of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s ZIF 7T1% )R FRRINIhEEE B
functional currency. =R
In addition, the Group has currency exposures from interest- AN, NEBEEKR O ERITE W
bearing bank borrowings, held by its subsidiary operating in GNER BB, SR B E R H AR B N AR
Chinese Mainland. As at 31 December 2023, interest-bearing BT RIS, R-E-_=+—
bank borrowings with a carrying amount of US$1,653,010,000 B=+—H, E@EEA1,653,010,000
(31 December 2022: US$1,775,774,000) are dominated in E¥g(-—TE-——F+—-_A=+—8.
United States dollars, other than the subsidiary’s functional 1,775,774,000Z 7T ) It BARFTIE 2R A
currency, which is RMB. EILEME, MIEUZFRAINEER
ARBEHE,
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TEBREFEEMESHIZ TSNS
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the R, REREBRANEBERFSM( B3E
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, TR ARESEHN SR ITAEES ) HAR
of the Group’s profit before tax (arising from USD and RMB WA & 1 A 18 ] BE S B O SR E
denominated financial instruments):
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
ErEREM S BADERE M,
(D) (D)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HBILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB & T H ARKERE 5% 47 599
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREAE (5%) (47,599)
Year ended 31 December 2022 BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARKEE 5% 60,535
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE (5%) (60,535)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. I EREEEERBE(E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty cannot meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, amounts due from related
parties and restricted and time deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets which
carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Further qualitative and quantitative information regarding
trade receivables, for which the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs under HKFRS 9, is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Apart from trade and notes receivables, all the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost, applying the
general approach under HKFRS 9, are classified as Stage 1 in
terms of ECLs as at 31 December 2023 in addition to the fully
impaired other receivables classified as Stage 3, as stated in
note 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

FERR
FEERBREHFHEEIBETERTAS
BEPAHMETEEMSIREBMBRZE
., AEEHBRREELEEE TER
B2 RYGIR ) EERR,

REEERERYREERTNE=FH
RBH ARG, REBNBERBAE, A
BERIRERFARSNEFYAERBE
RAZERF, N, BRFELEEIEK
BEMRETER, MAEENZRAR
I TEKX,

RAMBRARANRE MREFEY.
B 5 WA R ER R R KAt ATER R
A, HittERFAREMEENSBRE
. FEMEHE T SR A K BIRAE K E
FROEEESASERESREEM
HRRAREERR, AEBEYWELAM
FEEREERBNEMEE,

ERESREFANE-—TEEREE
BN AEERBETEMBHREELF
SRHERAB A EEMEEEE )
R HRE M E21 AR E,

BREA IS R M ST 22 AR EL D BB AR =
BHEHOREMNEMRKTR( RES
FEWRIE K FEW SRR ), PR TR K
$#2W$@§Fm%ﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ
BREEMNEIRERA—RIDE I =F
__¢+ A=t+—H®EMEEREE
DERE PR

RBEESER
REBOBRATEREZR K KB
HESFR, UBRERTHENESH
BRRTZSBHBBESEANRE K
RRE, NEHHEHLRARDES
BE,
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MKAMEEEERBEKR(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBECEK(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RBERAR, FEESRABRERESLD
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual REGRAA KW E BB RN T
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2023 —E-=F+=ZA=+—H
On Less than 3to 12 1to Over
demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
BREX SR=ER =E+=f@R —-ZRF "FUE b
US$’000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000
TEr TER TEn TEr TEr TEx
Interest-bearing bank AHERITIER
borrowings - 1,676 283,006 1,578,487 703,782 2,566,951
Lease liabilities HEEE - 3,468 513 10,217 12,771 26,969
Trade payables B SR 43,715 191,695 - - - 235410
Financial liabilities included ~ FTAE A FER FIE
in other payables and RE{HERANS
accruals BEE 175,893 75,382 - - - 251,275
Amounts due to related JES B SR
parties 13,876 - - - - 13,876
Total Bt 233,484 272,221 283,519 1,588,704 716,553 3,094,481
31 December 2022 R oF+ZA=+—H
On  Lessthan 3to 110 Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
BEk PR=ER ==+=f@R —ERF AHFUL @5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEx TET TET TErT TET FET
Interest-bearing bank FHERITER
borrowings - 43,521 486,724 1,290,956 521,043 2,342,244
Lease liabilities HERE - 1,626 3,832 7,674 10,119 23,251
Trade payables B S RERIE 34889 202,110 - - - 236,999
Financial liabilities included T AE A FER FHIE
in other payables and REHERNS
accruals BEE 223,271 95,673 - - - 318944
Amounts due to related JE < B 5 5UR
parties 6,096 - - - - 6,096
Total st 264,256 342,930 490,556 1,298,630 531,162 2,927,534
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38. A EEEFEREEKE )

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing

capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts
due to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios as at the end of each of the reporting periods

were as follows:

BErE"
AEBEEAEENEZARR, #EX
SENFECERNRERRIFNER
e, AXRHEEXELERBREEBER
Kito

AEBERBEEIRAN S EE R FHE
HEARRE, RERIGIREARE,
AEERGRHERN TRROBE. [
BRREBERNKEITHR, AKET
RAEMIMNBEINANEARERBR, RF
A, NREEEEEARNBER. BRSKIE
P EE),

AEBENEERABLRERER, BE
BELERRFEERAEREEINER
BetH, AEEKE S ENFA. 2l
BMFEREGHER. SHRRITEK.
HERBENAKEMBEE T FRAENGRRE
RASEEMFANFAE, REREH
ROWEERBLEWT:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —E-F

+ZA=+-H +=ZA=+—AH

US$’ 000 US$'000

ES FEx

Trade payables B SRR 235,410 236,999
Other payables and accruals (note 25) EEARIAREHER

(BH5E25) 343,933 401,383

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIE R 2,099,561 1,908,336

Lease liabilities HEBE 22,205 19,348

Amounts due to related parties JE (<} B RS 75 K18 13,876 6,096

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRReEEY (5,585,181) (2,008,765)

Net debt FRE (2,870,196) 563,397

Total equity REmias 8,014,544 4,135,468

Total equity and net debt RN FAE 5,144,348 4,698,865

Gearing ratio EEBELE -55.79% 11.99%
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets or lease liabilities of US$7,862,000
(2022: US$6,394,000) in respect of lease arrangements

for buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are

as follows:

390. FEREFRERME

(a) FBHFBREXH

RER, AEBHEZEEDHELH
BRANFREEESHESENIE
HERE /7,862,000 — T =

— 4. 6,394,000 7T

Jo

(b) BMEEBFFELHNABEZBIT.

Interest-
bearing
bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
STERITER HESE
US$’ 000 US$’ 000
FEx FEx
As at 1 January 2022 WN_E-_—_F—F—H 1,590,303 17,813
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRELY 268,564 (4,144)
Interest expense B 39,451 880
New leases HEE - 6,394
Foreign exchange movements HNE Z B 10,018 (1,595)
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January RZEZZF+ZA=+—H
2023 —E-_=F—HF—H 1,908,336 19,348
Changes from financing cash flows MERe RS 85,657 (5,674)
Interest expense B 99,429 1,068
New leases HE - 7,862
Foreign exchange movements HNE B 6,139 (399)
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A=+—H 2,099,561 22,205
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) MERSRHATE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement AR RERNEERSRHA
of cash flows is as follows: BT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
US$’ 000 US$’000
EpH FET
Within operating activities EEEEA 2,383 2,625
Within financing activities BEEEIR 5,674 4,144
Total 4t 8,057 6,769
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 40. EERFEREZZHEEZETF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG
Details of the Group’'s subsidiaries that have material non- NEBEBEAFERER L, FREIZ
controlling interests are set out below: BT
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
Percentage of interest held by IR R A LR
non-controlling interests:
Hua Hong Manufacturing B 49% 49%
Hua Hong Wuxi Egsy 49% 49%
The board of directors is the supreme governing body for Hua BEESAENESNESEE#E, A
Hong Wuxi, in which non-controlling shareholders hold three tREFAK, B =REEAIEER
seats out of seven. Therefore, the proportion of voting rights is IR, A, REELOITER LT
different from that of the ownership interest above. BRERERELO,
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FER FET
Loss for the year allocated to DREFERERZZFR
non-controlling interests: E1E .
Hua Hong Wuxi EiE 37 (150,000) (43,341)
Hua Hong Manufacturing EITRGE (3,609) -
(153,609) (43,341)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS B AR s R 5T
interests at the reporting date: R
Hua Hong Wuxi Bt 936,596 1,104,998
Hua Hong Manufacturing AT RIS 776,953 -

Total st 1,713,549 1,104,998
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31 December 2023
—T-=F+=ZHA=+—H

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

40. BERFERERZFEET

NE(E)

TREE BT AR EER, P
Bz eBRREAARBEHEZ 25

Hua Hong Wuxi

HIT IR

2023 2022

—E-= —E-F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FER FET

Revenue HEKA 995,981 1,007,153

Other income H KA 61,382 30,296

Total expenses 1858 (1,357,791) (1,125,901)

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREEKE 2 HEEEAE (300,428) (88,452)

Current assets MENEE 1,248,003 1,648,490

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,846,165 2,862,686

Current liabilities mENEE 475,938 (877,123)

Non-current liabilities JEnBaE 1,701,179 (1,378,965)
Net cash flows generated from operating KEREFSREMEFE

activities 219,745 240,417

Net cash flows used in investing activities KERDFIAREMEFE (533,561) (866,530)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEE TR )/ FERE

financing activities Pih=9c ==t (50,119) 1,085,213

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEERFEFE, S5 (13,819) (20,577)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReERRSFEBDORD )/

equivalents HANFRE (377,754) 438,523
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

L BRI

40. BERFERERZFEET

NE(E)

TREE BT AR EER, P
BZeBRTAARMEREAN .

are before any inter-company eliminations: (continued) (&)
Hua Hong
Manufacturing
EITRE
2023
—E-=
US$’ 000
FER
Revenue HEMRA -
Other income E A 9,002
Total expenses B3R (16,450)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FABEREARERE (7,448)
Current assets mEEE 1,444,804
Non-current assets ERENEE 357,112
Current liabilities mBEaE 103,430
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 112,951
Net cash flows generated used in operating activities KEEBTARSREFE (8,487)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KERSAREMEFE (260,150)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities BMERBAFReNEFE 1,722,576
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEEEREEHTE, FHE (18,123)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be MReSEYIEINFRE 1,435,816
A
41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD M. FEHPEREE

On 28 March 2024, the Company proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.165 per ordinary share totaling approximately
US$36,234,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

R-TB-_ME=A=-+/7\B, KQFE
BREHBE-_TE-_=F+=-_A=+—H
IFFEMRERESREBIR16.55
i, &44936,234,000%7T, NEEE
FEAIR BAFA QR REAEERR
BERE LHOER, FAEE,
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

31 December 2023

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—EC=F+-A=+—H

42. QBB R R

BRARARBERAROPBERAERE
FEZIT .

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E—-= —E-F
+=ZH=+—-H +ZA=+—H
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KERFRNA 4,267,223 2,155,052
Total non-current assets IEMENVEERRRE 4,267,223 2,155,052
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade and notes receivables B 5 eI A K I iR 2,680 5,785
Prepayments, other receivables and other TERFIE. EfERIER

assets Hi&EE 360 1,649
Due from a subsidiary i G R/NEIERE] 1,001 998
Restricted and time deposits ER& K E TR 27 27
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 1,021,676 56,171
Total current assets MENEEBT 1,025,744 64,630
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HibENAFIBEREGEER 801 689
Due to subsidiaries B FRBEIFRIEAE 98,701 98,309
Total current liabilities mE) B EER 99,502 98,998
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (&fE )FHE 926,242 (34,368)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEZEHAHER 5,193,465 2,120,684
Net assets FEE 5,193,465 2,120,684
EQUITY =
Share capital &7 4,933,559 1,994,462
Reserves (note) GG ES 259,906 126,222
Total equity FERAEE 5,193,465 2,120,684

Suxin Zhang Jun Ye
R/ ik
Director Director
EE =
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THE COMPANY (continued)

31 December 2023
—B-=Ff+tZA=1—H

B RS ¥R R B

42, KN TBI MR R R(E )

Note: i
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NARKIREBBLRNT .
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Other option retained
reserve reserve profits Total
(R&tEE )/
Hibf#E BRERE BEaA st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TR TERr S FER
As at 1 January 2022 R-T-——#—H—H (68,260) 15,577 (19,001) (71,684)
Profit for the year FREF - - 199,049 199,049
Equity-settled share option LA s S E B IR
arrangements - 1,226 - 1,226
Issue of shares BT - (2,369) - (2,369)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2023 r—ZFE-—=F—HA—H (68,260) 14,434 180,048 126,222
Profit for the year F R A - - 134,079 134,079
Equity-settled share option AR S E R
arrangements - 853 - 853
Issue of shares BT - (1,248) - (1,248)
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-A=+—H (68,260) 14,039 314,127 259,906
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. B mRAVHLE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.

T mEE R E-_WE=A =+ \H
EE = E MIRETIE,
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FIVE YEAR FINANGCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

TXEINAEEREO DA REFENEE
UREE. BERFERESHHME, B
BRI A TIBREERI TR,

below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—ECo=FE B - —EZEF ZZ-NF
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$000
FERT TEr TET TET TET
RESULTS E
REVENUE HEWA 2,286,113 2475488 1,630,754 961,279 932,567
Cost of sales HERA (1,799,017)  (1,631,832) (1,179,156)  (726,486)  (650,107)
Gross profit 7 487,096 843,656 451,598 234,793 282,460
Other income and gains HAA Rz 144,370 70,986 60,758 57,313 69,091
Fair value gain on an investment property & &MEMN AT AN 103 78 183 198 163
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (10,189) (12,464) (10,673) (8,169) (8,828)
Administrative expenses ERER (322,868)  (266,666)  (198,920)  (261,139)  (169,796)
Other expenses Hi &R (33,666)  (111,360) (165) (10) (406)
Finance costs BB (100,497) (40,331) (13,226) (2,968) (1,242)
Share of profits of associates AEMEREEH 9,230 12,171 6,765 26,059 10,131
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BAIRR 173,579 496,070 296,320 46,077 181,573
Income tax expense FEHAX (47,154) (89,499) (65,349) (12,762) (26,588)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ERRA 126,425 406,571 230,971 33,315 154,985
Attributable to: UTEIRREL .
Owners of the parent BATERA 280,034 449,912 261476 99,443 162,237
Non-controlling interests IR (153,609) (43,341) (30,505) (66,128) (7,252)
126,425 406,571 230,971 33,315 154,985
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“E-=F ZE-zf§ ZT--% ZZ-TF —ZT-NF
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$000
FERT TEn TET TET TET
Total assets EERE 10,943,420 7055376 6,202,099 4568586 3,613,303
Total liabilities afEes (2,928,876) (2,919,908) (2,517,552) (1,214,465)  (530,711)
Non-controlling interests S (1,713,549)  (1,104998)  (814,188)  (825,679)  (837,351)
6,300,995 3,030,470 2,870,359 2528442 2,245 241
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